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Cover Rationale
The collage of pictures from the Hotel Division and
Property Division reflects the two divisions’ leading
role in spearheading RPB’s strategic focus and business
growth for the future.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 19th Annual General Meeting of
Reliance Pacific Berhad will be held at the Langkawi Room, Bukit Jalil
Golf & Country Resort, Jalan 3/155B, Bukit Jalil, 57000 Kuala Lumpur
on Friday 23 September 2011 at 10.30 a.m. to transact the following
business:-

i)

the aggregate number of shares purchased (which may be
treated as treasury shares) does not exceed ten percent
(10%) of the issued capital of the Company; and

ii)

funds allocated for the purchase of shares shall not exceed
its retained profits and share premium account.

AGENDA
AND THAT the Directors be and are hereby further authorized to
deal with the treasury shares in their absolute discretion (which
may be distributed as dividends, resold and/or cancelled)

1.	To receive the audited financial statements together with the reports
of the Directors and Auditors for the financial year ended 31 March
2011.

AND THAT such authority shall continue to be in force until:2.

Re-appointment of a director under Section 129(6) of Companies’
Act, 1965.
(a) Lim Guan Chin
		 (Ordinary Resolution 1)

3.

Re-election of directors retiring under Article 98 of the Company’s
Articles of Association:(a)	Tan Sin Chong
(Ordinary Resolution 2)

5.

6.

b)

the expiration of the period within which the next AGM is
required by law to be held; or

c)

revoked or varied by ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders in a general meeting;

6.3 Proposed Shareholders’ Ratification and Proposed Shareholders’
Mandate for Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a Revenue
or Trading Nature.

Approval directors’ fees for the financial year ended 31 March
2011.
(Ordinary Resolution 4)

“THAT subject to the Companies’ Act 1965 (“the Act”), the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, the
requirements of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and all
relevant authorities, approval be and is hereby given for the
proposed shareholders’ ratification and proposed shareholders’
mandate for recurrent related party transactions of a revenue
and trading nature entered into or to be entered into by RPB
Group as stated in Section 2.1.1 of the Circular to shareholders
dated 29 August 2011 which are necessary for its day-today operations on the basis that these transactions were/are
on terms which were/are not more favourable to the Related
Parties than those generally available to the public and were/are
not detrimental to the minority shareholders of the Company.

Re-appointment of Messrs AljeffriDean as Auditors and that
authority be and is hereby given for the Directors to determine
their remuneration.
(Ordinary Resolution 5)
AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

	To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following Ordinary
Resolutions respectively:6.1 Section 132D of the Companies’ Act 1965
“THAT subject to the Companies Act, 1965 (“the Act”) and
the Articles of Association of the Company, the Directors be
and are hereby empowered pursuant to Section 132D of
the Act, to allot and issue shares in the Company at any time
and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes
as the Directors may in their absolute discretion, deem fit
provided that the aggregate number of shares to be issued
does not exceed ten percent (10%) of the issued share capital
of the Company for the time being and that the Directors are
empowered to obtain the approval for the listing and the
quotation of the additional shares so issued on Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad AND THAT such authority shall continue to
be in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company.”
(Ordinary Resolution 6)

is subject to
	THAT the proposed shareholders’ mandate
annual renewal and any authority conferred by the proposed
shareholders’ mandate shall only continue to be in force until:(a) the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
of the Company following the general meeting at which the
proposed shareholders’ mandate was passed, at which time
it will lapse, unless by a resolution passed at the meeting,
the authority is renewed;
(b) the expiration of the period within which the next AGM is
required to be held pursuant to section 143(1) of the Act
(but shall not extend to such extension as may be allowed
pursuant to section 143(2) of the Act); or
(c) revoked or varied by resolution passed by the shareholders
in general meeting,

6.2 Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back Authority
“THAT the Directors be and are hereby authorized to purchase
the ordinary shares of the Company on the market of Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad at any time upon such terms and
conditions as the Directors in their absolute discretion deem
fit provided that:-
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the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting (“AGM”);

whichever occurs first.”
(Ordinary Resolution 7)

(b) Dato’ Samsudin Bin Abu Hassan
		 (Ordinary Resolution 3)
4.

a)

whichever is the earlier.
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NOTES

AND THAT the Directors be and are hereby empowered to do
all acts and things as they may be considered expedient or
necessary to give full effect to the proposed shareholders’
ratification and proposed shareholders’ mandate on recurrent
related party transactions with full powers to assent to any
conditions, modifications, revaluations, variations and/
or amendments (if any) as may be imposed by the relevant
authorities.”
(Ordinary Resolution 8)
6.4

1.

Proposed Renewal of Shareholders Mandate on Recurrent Related
Party Transactions of a Revenue or Trading Nature (“Proposed
Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate”)

The Proxy Form must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company
at Block A, Unit, A-5-3 Megan Avenue II, 12 Jalan Yap Kwan Seng, 50450
Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia, not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the
time set for holding the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

THAT subject to the Companies’ Act 1965 (“the Act”) the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, the
requirements of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and all
relevant authorities, approval be and is hereby given to the
Company and its subsidiaries, to enter and give effect to specified
recurrent related party transactions of a revenue or trading
nature and with specified classes of the related parties as stated
in Section 2.2.1 of the Circular to shareholders dated 29 August
2011 which are necessary for the Group’s day-to-day operations
subject further to the following:(i)

the transactions are in the ordinary course of business and
are on terms not more favourable to the related parties
other than those generally available to the public and
are not to the detriment of the minority shareholders; and

2.

Audited financial statements
The agenda is meant for discussion only as under the provision of Section
169(1) of the Companies’ Act 1965, the audited financial statements do
not require formal approval of shareholders, hence the matter will not be
put for voting.

3.

Retirement of Director
Dato’ Abdul Rahim Bin Osman retires under Article 91 of the Articles of
Association and does not wish to seek re-election.

4.

Authority to issue shares under Section 132D
The proposed Ordinary Resolution 6 in relation to authority to allot
shares pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies’ Act 1965 (“the Act”),
if passed will empower the Directors to issue shares up to an aggregate
amount not exceeding 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
for the time being, for such purposes as the Directors consider would be
in the interests of the Company. This new general mandate will provide
flexibility to the Company for any possible fund raising activities, funding
future investments project(s), working capital and/or acquisitions. This
would avoid any delay and cost involved in convening a general meeting
to approve such issue of shares. This authority, unless revoked or varied at
a general meeting, will expire at the next Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
of the Company. The Company did not issue any new shares based on the
previous mandate obtained at the last AGM because there was no need
for any fund raising activity for the purpose of investment, acquisition or
working capital.

5.

Proposed Renewal of Share Buy Back Authority
The proposed Ordinary Resolution 7, if passed, shall empower the
Directors from the date of the 19th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”),
to purchase the Company’s shares up to 10% of the issued and paid up
share capital of the Company. This authority, unless revoked or varied at a
general meeting, will expire at the next AGM of the Company. Please refer
to the Circular to Shareholders dated 29 August 2011 with regard to the
Ordinary Resolution 7.

6.

Proposed Shareholders’ Ratification and Proposed shareholders’ Mandate
for Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a Revenue or Trading Nature
The proposed Ordinary Resolution 8, if passed, will empower the Company
to do the following:

(ii) the Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate is subject
to annual renewal which shall only continue to be in force
until:(a) the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting
(“AGM”) of the Company following the general meeting
at which such Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’
Mandate was passed, at which time it will lapse, unless
by a resolution passed at the meeting, the authority is
renewed;
(b) the expiration of the period within which the next AGM
is required to be held pursuant to section 143(1) of the
Act (but shall not extend to such extension as may be
allowed pursuant to section 143(2) of Act; or
(c) revoked or varied by resolution passed by the
shareholders in general meeting,
whichever is the earlier.
AND THAT the Directors be and are hereby empowered to
do all acts and things as they may be considered expedient
or necessary to give full effect to the Proposed Renewal of
Shareholders’ Mandate on recurrent related party transactions
with full powers to assent to any conditions, modifications,
revaluations, variations and/or amendments (if any) as may
be imposed by the relevant authorities.
(Ordinary Resolution 9)
7.

Appointment of Proxy
Every member is entitled to appoint a proxy or in the case of a corporation,
to appoint a representative to attend and vote in his stead. A proxy need
not be a member of the Company. The Form of Proxy must be signed
by the appointer or by his attorney duly authorised in writing or if the
appointer is a corporation, either under seal or under hand of an officer or
attorney duly authorised. If no name is inserted in the space for the name
of your proxy, the Chairman of the Meeting will act as your proxy.

(a) To ratify the specified recurrent related party transactions entered
into by the Company from 1 April 2011, being the date of the
disposal of certain subsidiary companies to the date of the 19th
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”); and
(b) to enter into recurrent related party transactions from the date of
the Company’s 19th AGM up to the conclusion of the next AGM.

To transact any other business of which due notice shall have
been given in accordance with the Companies’ Act, 1965.

7.

By Order of the Board
Tan Bee Leng

(MAICSA No. 7009994)
Secretary

Proposed Renewal of Shareholders Mandate on Recurrent Related Party
Transactions of a Revenue or Trading Nature
The proposed Ordinary Resolution 9, if passed, will empower the Directors
from the date of the 19th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”), to deal with the
related party transactions involving recurrent transactions of a revenue
or trading nature which are necessary for its day-to-day operations.
These Recurrent Related Party Transactions are in the ordinary course of
business and are on terms not more favourable to the related party than
those generally available to the public. This authority, unless revoked or
varied at a general meeting, will expire at the next AGM of the Company.
Please refer to the Circular to Shareholders dated 29 August 2011 with
regard to the Ordinary Resolutions 9.

Kuala Lumpur
Date: 29 August 2011
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Corporate Information
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Dato’ Gan Eng Kwong
(Chairman)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Tan Bee Leng (MAICSA No.7009994)

Datin Irene Tan
(Chief Executive Officer)

REGISTERED OFFICE
Block A, Unit A-5-3, Megan Avenue II
12 Jalan Yap Kwan Seng
50450 Kuala Lumpur
Tel: 03-21628181
Fax : 03-27309978

Dato’ Abdul Rahim Bin Osman
Lim Guan Chin
Johan Arifin Sopiee Bin Mohamed Noordin

PRINCIPAL AUDITORS
AljeffriDean (AF1366)
Chartered Accountants (Malaysia)

Tan Sin Chong
Dato’ Samsudin Bin Abu Hassan
MEMBERS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE
Dato’ Abdul Rahim Bin Osman
(Chairman, Independent Non-Executive
Director)

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING
Main Market, Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad

Lim Guan Chin
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

SHARE REGISTRARS
Symphony Share Registrars Sdn Bhd
(378993-D)
Level 6, Symphony House
Pusat Dagangan Dana 1
Jalan PJU 1A/46
47301 Petaling Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia
Tel: 03-78418000
Fax: 03-78418151 / 52

Johan Arifin Sopiee Bin Mohamed Noordin
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
OCBC Bank (Malaysia) Berhad
Malayan Banking Berhad
CIMB Bank Berhad
Hong Leong Bank Berhad
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Directors’ Profile
DATO’ GAN ENG KWONG

DATO’ ABDUL RAHIM BIN OSMAN

Dato’ Gan Eng Kwong aged 61, a Malaysian holds
the position of Chairman. He has been actively
involved in managing RPB’s Travel Division since
1975. Dato’ Gan is a non-independent executive
director and was appointed to the RPB Board on
13 May 1993.

Dato’ Abdul Rahim Bin Osman aged 64, a
Malaysian is an independent non-executive
director. He was appointed to the Board of RPB
on 10 December 1997 and is the Chairman of
the RPB’s Audit Committee. He graduated with
Bachelor of Science and Master of Business
Administration degrees from Northern Illinois
University, USA. He also completed the Advanced
Management Programme at Harvard Business
School, USA. He was the managing director of
Keretapi Tanah Melayu Berhad (KTMB) where he
worked for many years until he left for private
business in 1997. During his tenure with KTMB,
he acquired vast experience in the management
of a service industry especially the travel and
transportation business. Currently, he is involved
in a number of private limited companies where
he is a shareholder and director.

He has over 30 years of experience in the tourism
industry locally and abroad. He currently leads
the development of information technology in
the Group’s global travel business and network.
Dato’ Gan is also a life member of the Institute of
Directors.
DATIN IRENE TAN
Datin Irene Tan aged 56, a Malaysian is the Chief
Executive Officer. Datin Irene was appointed as
a non-independent executive director to the RPB
Board on 13 May 1993.

LIM GUAN CHIN

Datin Irene’s experience spans a wide ambit of
the travel, tourism, hotel and resort development
industries. She was responsible for the
development of Malaysia’s first homegrown
Travel Franchise under the Reliance brand name.
Datin Irene also led a team of hotel professionals
in developing Malaysia’s first homegrown Hotel
Management Franchise System for the Seri
Malaysia chain of hotels. She spearheaded and
developed the Avillion Hotel Sydney, Avillion
Hotel Port Dickson, Admiral Cove Development
and Admiral Marina & Leisure Club in Port
Dickson.

Lim Guan Chin aged 73, a Malaysian is an
independent non-executive director. He was
appointed to the Board of RPB on 22 June 1994
and is a member of RPB’s Audit Committee. He
graduated with a Bachelor of Science degree from
the University of Malaya in 1962 and upon his
graduation he worked in various organisations in
the public and private sectors. He retired in 1994.

Datin Irene is an Associate Member of the
Harvard Business School Alumni, a life member of
Institute of Directors and the Malaysian Institute
of Personnel Management.

Reliance Pacific Berhad • Company No. 244521 A
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JOHAN ARIFIN SOPIEE BIN MOHAMED NOORDIN

DATO’ SAMSUDIN BIN ABU HASSAN

Johan Arifin Sopiee Bin Mohamed Noordin
aged 41, a Malaysian is an independent nonexecutive director. He was appointed to the RPB
Board on 2 January 2009 and is a member of
RPB’s Audit Committee. He graduated with BA
(Hons) in Accounting and Financial Management
from University of Essex, England and is also an
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
(ACCA) graduate from Emile Woolf College,
London.

Dato’ Samsudin Bin Abu Hassan aged 55, a
Malaysian is an independent non-executive
director. He was appointed to the RPB Board
on 2 April 2011. He is a Fellow Member of the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants
(CIMA UK). He started his career in Malaysia in
1980 and have served in different capacities
in various organizations. He has vast all round
experience in corporate finance in various
industries in Malaysia and overseas.

Johan’s working experience includes audit with
Arthur Andersen KL, stock market research with
RHB Research Institute Sdn Bhd and business
development and marketing with an IT company
known as Hitechniaga Sdn Bhd. Currently, he is
the vice president and director of Noordin Sopiee
& Associates Sdn Bhd.

Dato’ Samsudin is a former Executive Director/
CEO of Seloga Holdings Berhad.

MR TAN SIN CHONG

Other Information on Directors

Tan Sin Chong aged 53, a Malaysian is a nonindependent executive director. He was appointed
to the RPB Board on 29 April 2011.

Conflict of Interest
None of the above directors has any conflict of
interest with the Company.

He obtained a Bachelor of Arts (Hon) from
University of Science, Malaysia in 1982. He has
over 20 years of experience in international
marketing of travel, tourism and hospitality
services and products. Mr. Tan has also vast
experience in property development planning,
construction and marketing of properties in
Malaysia and overseas.

Convictions for offences
None of the above directors has been convicted
for offences within the past 10 years other than
traffic offences, if any.
Family Relationship
None of the above directors has any family
relationship except Datin Irene Tan who is the
spouse of Dato’ Gan Eng Kwong.

He is currently a council member of the MalaysiaSingapore Business Council and chairs the
council’s Tourism Committee. He also serves as
an international member of the World Travel
& Tourism Council Strategic Committee for
e-commerce. Mr. Tan is also an associate member
of the Harvard Business School Alumni, Malaysia.
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Group Structure

as of 31 March 2011
Avillion Hotels International Sdn Bhd
Avi Spa Sdn Bhd

Hotel Division

Property Division

Avillion Hotel Group Sdn Bhd

Avi Suite Hotel (PD) Sdn Bhd

Fortune Valley Sdn Bhd

Avillion Vista Hotel Sdn Bhd

RPB Hotel & Resort
Management Sdn Bhd

Admiral Cove Development Sdn Bhd

Admiral Marina Berhad

Admiral Hill Hotel Sdn Bhd

ACD Project Management
Services Sdn Bhd

Nesline Sdn Bhd

Genius Field Sdn Bhd

Festive Place Sdn Bhd

Vast Access Sdn Bhd

RPB Development Sdn Bhd

Avillion Hotel (Malacca) Sdn Bhd
Meridian Haven Sdn Bhd
Australian Vacations Pty Ltd
Reliance Travel Pty Ltd
Travel Division

RPB Holdings (Overseas) Ltd

Reliance Travel (Hong Kong) Ltd
Vacation Asia (HK) Ltd
Reliance Travel Agencies (S) Pte Ltd
Vacation Singapore DMC Pte Ltd
Read Advertising Sdn Bhd

Support Companies

Reliance Pacific Berhad • Company No. 244521 A
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Corporate Governance Statement
The Board of Directors of Reliance Pacific Berhad (RPB) will endeavour to adopt the principles and best
practices of corporate governance in conducting all the business and affairs of the Company and Group.
Pursuant to Paragraph 15.25 of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad’s (“Bursa Securities”) Main Market
Listing Requirements (“Listing Requirements”), the Board is pleased to report to shareholders in the manner
in which RPB has applied the Principles of the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance (“the Code”) and
complied with the Best Practices as set out in the Code throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2011.
Board of Directors
Composition & Board Balance
The Board consists of seven members of which four are independent non-executive directors and three
non-independent executive directors. The profile of each director is presented on page 6 and 7 in the Annual
Report.
The concept of independence adopted by the Board is in line with the definition of an independent director
in paragraph 1.01 of the Listing Requirements. The Board complies with paragraph 15.02 of the Listing
Requirements which requires that at least two directors or one third of the Board of the Company, whichever
is higher are independent directors.
The composition of the Board represents a good mix of knowledge, skills and experience to ensure that the
Group is competitive within its industry.
The directors will take a review on the size of the Board as and when necessary.
Duties and Responsibilities
The Board adheres to the Code of Conduct/Ethics for Directors.
The Code of Conduct/Ethics for Directors highlights the criterias that directors should observe in the
performance of their duties. The Board leads, controls, provides strategic direction and has the overall
responsibilities for the corporate governance, formulation of key policies, overseeing investments and
businesses for the Group, risk management, investor relations programmes, internal controls and management
information systems. The management is accountable for the execution of the corporate objectives and
policies set by the Board.
The duties and responsibilities of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) are distinct and separate
with clear division of responsibilities. The Chairman is responsible for managing the conduct of the Board
and ensuring its effectiveness including ensuring all directors receive sufficient relevant information on all
financial, business, operational and corporate matters to enable each of them to participate actively and
effectively in Board decisions. The CEO is responsible for the efficient and effective management of the
business operations and strategic direction of the Group.

Reliance Pacific Berhad • Company No. 244521 A
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Board Meetings
The Board normally has four (4) scheduled meetings annually with additional meetings convened as and
when necessary. At such scheduled meetings the Board deliberates and gives approval to quarterly financial
reports, audited accounts, recurrent related party transactions and other material agreements prior to
announcement to Bursa Securities. During meetings the Board is also briefed on business performance and
financial aspects of the Group.
During the financial year ended 31 March 2011, five (5) Board meetings were held. Details of the attendance
of the Directors at board meetings held during the financial year ended 31 March 2011 are detailed below.
Attendance
Director
Dato’ Gan Eng Kwong		 4/5
Datin Irene Tan		 5/5
Dato’ Abdul Rahim Bin Osman		 5/5
Lim Guan Chin		 5/5
Johan Arifin Sopiee Bin Mohamed Noordin		 5/5
Supply of information
The Board is provided in advance with a yearly scheduled timetable which includes all board meetings, audit
committee meetings and other relevant meetings. This is to ensure timely and adequate information are
circulated prior to the meetings.
Each Board member is supplied in advance with an agenda, written reports which include minutes of previous
meetings, financial reports and other reports relevant to the meeting, to allow the directors sufficient time to
review and to deliberate at the board meetings and to facilitate informed decision making by the directors.
Management representatives are also present to provide additional insight on matters to be discussed during
the board meetings.
The Board members are also provided with the relevant facts, analysis and recommendations on any new
corporate proposals. Advisers and professionals such as merchant bankers and solicitors may be invited
to attend the board meetings at which such proposals are deliberated to provide the Board with their
explanations and advice and to clarify any issues raised.
All directors have access to the Group’s information through the management team and the services of the
Company Secretary, who provide the Board with any updates to the statutory and regulatory requirements
and any other matters related to the affairs of the Group.
Appointment to the Board and Re-election
The appointment of any additional directors is made as and when it is deemed necessary by the Board of
Directors with due consideration given to a good mix of knowledge, skills and experience required for the
Board to discharge its duties effectively. Any proposal to appoint new directors will be discussed among the
Board members and appointment to the Board will be documented in the Board resolutions.
The Articles of Association of the Company provides that one third of the Board shall retire from office and
be eligible for re-election at every Annual General Meeting. Directors over seventy years of age are required
to submit themselves for re-appointment annually in accordance with Section 129(6) of the Companies’ Act
1965.
Reliance Pacific Berhad • Company No. 244521 A
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Directors’ Training
All the Board members have attended and successfully completed the Directors’ Mandatory Accreditation
Programme (“MAP”) prescribed by Bursa Securities for Directors of public listed companies. The Board
acknowledges the fact that continuous education is vital for the Board members to keep abreast with
the developments of the economy and further enhance their knowledge to discharge their duties and
responsibilities more effectively.
During the financial year directors’ training programmes attended by the Directors includes the following:
Audit Committee Institute Roundtable discussion titled: Going Forward: Risk & Reform - Implications
for Audit Committee Oversight
(ii)	Sustainability Programme For Corporate Malaysia
Corporate Governance (“CG”) Week 2010 programmes organised by Securities Commission and Bursa
(iii)
Securities are:(i)

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Independent Directors - Actual verses Perceived Independence
Engagement verses Activism - Achieving the Right Balance
Views from the Boardroom - Challenges Directors Face
Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control
Corporate Governance: Steering Capital Market Towards Financial Reporting Excellence
Stroking the fire of Corporate Governance
Boardroom Ethics
Board Role, Directors’ Duties and Blind Spots, Biases and other Pathologies in the Boardroom
Forum by Public Listed Companies: CG Best Practices

Our Directors will also continue to attend further training from time to time, particularly on relevant new
laws and regulations.
Remuneration
The remuneration packages of executive and non-executive directors are approved by the Board. The
directors’ annual fees are recommended by the Board and tabled for shareholders’ approval at the Annual
General Meeting. The aggregate remuneration of directors who served during the financial year ended 31
March 2011 are categorised into appropriate components.
Category
Executive Directors
Non-Executive Directors

Fees
(RM)
76,000
95,000

Salaries & other
Emoluments (RM)
1,914,357
10,000

Benefits
In Kind (RM)
4,670
-

The executive directors did not take any salary increment but instead took a voluntary salary reduction for
2 financial years in 2008/2009 and 2009/2010. In financial year 2010/2011, the overall Increase to their
total remuneration Is 15%.
The number of Directors whose total remuneration during the financial year fall within the respective bands
are as follows:		
Number
RM950,000 to RM1,050,000
2
Executive Directors
Non-Executive Directors
Less than RM50,000
3
Reliance Pacific Berhad • Company No. 244521 A
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Committee Established by the Board
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee was established on 5 July 1994 and currently comprises of three fully Independent
Non-Executive Directors. The terms of reference and goals of the Audit Committee are set out in the Audit
Committee Report.
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
The Board of Directors nominates and approves the appointment of new directors. The Board also approves
the remuneration packages of the executive directors and non-executive directors and recommends the
directors’ fees which is then tabled for shareholders’ approval at the Annual General Meeting.
Investor Relations and Shareholders’ Communication
The Board values regular communication with shareholders and investors. This includes various medium of
communication such as annual general meetings, announcements on quarterly financial results and material
agreements made throughout the year, audited financial results and annual reports. The information provide
shareholders and investing public with an overview of the Group’s performance and business operations.
The Board recognizing the importance of investors relations has established close contact with analysts and
institutional shareholders by providing regular update on the Group’s business developments.
The Group has established a comprehensive and current website at http://www.rpb.com.my to further
enhance investor relations and communication with shareholders, investors and general public to access
information such as group’s profile, services, financial performance and corporate information.
Accountability and Audit
Financial Reporting
The Directors aim to present a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s position and prospects
when presenting the financial statements, quarterly announcements and submission of reports to regulators.
The annual and quarterly financial reports are prepared in accordance with the provision of the Companies’
Act 1965 and approved accounting standards.
The annual and quarterly financial reports are reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board.

Reliance Pacific Berhad • Company No. 244521 A
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement
The Directors are required under the provisions of the Companies’ Act 1965 to prepare financial statement
for each financial year, which gives a true and fair view of the Company. Following discussions with the
auditors, the Directors consider that the Company uses appropriate accounting policies and such policies are
supported by reasonable and prudent judgement and estimates.
The Directors also ensure that the Company keeps the accounting records and are disclosed with reasonable
accuracy which enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies’ Act, 1965
and the relevant accounting standards. The Directors also took the necessary steps to safeguard the assets
of the Company.
Having prepared the financial statements, the Directors have requested the Auditors to take whatever steps
and undertake whatever inspections they consider appropriate for the purpose of preparing their audit
reports.
The Board has given their approval for the Corporate Governance Statement and are satisfied that as far as
possible the Group has complied with the best practices of the Code.
Internal Control
The Group’s Internal Control Statement is set out on page 16 of the Annual Report.
Relationship with External Auditors
The role of the Audit Committee in relation to the external auditors is set out on page 17 of the Annual
Report. The Company has always maintained a cordial and transparent relationship with its external auditors
in seeking professional advice and ensuring compliance with the relevant accounting standards. The External
Auditors are independent.
Related Party Transactions
All related party transactions for the financial year ended 31 March 2011 are set out in Note 35 of the Annual
Report. This note also sets out the recurrent transactions conducted during the period in accordance with the
general mandate obtained from shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on 23 September 2010.
Other Disclosure Requirements
The Company did not enter into any share buy-back transactions during the financial year 2010/2011.

Reliance Pacific Berhad • Company No. 244521 A
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Corporate Social Responsibility
RPB will continue to observe and carry out its corporate social responsibility (CSR) to promote
humanitarian works to the deserving and underprivileged and to alleviate the social well being of the
community as well as to ensure the sustainability of the environment both locally and abroad. Our
daily business is conducted through integration of business practices based on ethical values and
respect for the environment, the work place, the community and the market place.
The Environment
RPB Group manages its operations by placing special emphasis on conservation, sustainability and
environment protection.
In our efforts to raise awareness for the importance of a clean sea shore, our hotel division, Avillion
Hotel Group (“AHG”) first launched a beach clean up campaign entitled “Take A Stand in the Sand”
in November 2009. To raise awareness on the importance of retaining natural forest reserve and
protection of wildlife, flora and fauna, AHG participates in a yearly state sponsored programme called
the “Raptor’s Watch”, whereby migratory birds are observed yearly when they rest over at Tanjung
Tuan.
To prevent pollution in the marina basin, strict rules and regulations are imposed on all boaters berthed
at the marina and deck sanding, spray painting and other polluting works are restricted to the repair
yard pontoon. Strict conservation policy is practised for divers at Avillion Layang Layang.
All employees of the RPB Group are encouraged to reduce paper usage and recycle used paper where
possible. Quarterly and annual spring cleaning events were organised by the Group at which unwanted
papers, brochures, packing materials, empty printer cartridges and other recyclable items are sent for
recycling.
AHG’s CSR activities such as Plant-a-Tree programme and Beach Clean Up Campaign have made a
positive impact on the participants on the importance of a cleaner environment.
The Work Place
RPB Group values its human capital and has placed high emphasis on the development of human
capital resources. Over the past years, the employees of the Group has expanded to comprise a
global team of dedicated professional managers and staff who have blended modern technology with
traditional values of hard work, perseverance and integrity.
As part of the human capital development, the Group also conducts various in-house training
programmes focusing on quality leadership, building effective performance and job skills related
training to equip employees with improved skills and knowledge.
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To strike a balance between work life and personal strives, the employees are encouraged to participate
in social, sports and welfare activities organised by the Social Club. Communication and camaraderie
among staff is fostered through social gatherings such as annual dinners, festive parties and quarterly
birthday celebrations. Hotel employees are encouraged to participate in inter-hotel sports activities
and tournaments organised by Malaysia Association of Hotels.
The Group acknowledges and commits to create a safe and conducive working environment for all Its
employees. Employees must work together in effecting health and safety in the work place.
The Community
RPB has always been supportive of employees’ involvement in community issues.
RPB’s hotel division organised several fund raising projects for homes of the underprivileged children
and old folks. One of such projects Include a pre-Christmas charity event called “Time for Giving, Time
for Sharing” whereby employees, hotel guests and public make cash contributions to the orphanages
or purchase gifts for the orphans.
On 25 April 2010 AHG has organised a fund raising project by reproducing on T-Shirts for sale, the
creative works of winners of a crayon colouring contest with the theme “I have a dream”. The contest
was one of the events for the Inspirational Tour of Avillion Admiral Cove organised for children from
some orphanages from Port Dickson, Seremban and Malacca. The enthusiasm and creativity of these
children have touched the hearts of the organisers who reproduced the works of the top 3 winners on
T-Shirts for sale and the proceeds were utilised for the purchase of school supplies and uniforms for
the children as well as contributing to the daily sustenance of the New Life Care Centre Port Dickson,
Rhema Homes Seremban, Sri Ramakrisnan Melaka and Lighthouse Children Home Melaka.
The annual blood donation drive called “A Life in Dire Need, A Drop Of Blood Indeed” organised by
AHG has entered into its 3rd year. In collaboration with Hospital Port Dickson, the hospital will in turn
provide free outpatient health check and hepatitis B innoculation for those donors who donated twice
within 12 months.
The Market Place
RPB Group places great importance in its stakeholders such as investors and institutional shareholders
in the market place. This is achieved by establishing close contact with analysts and institutional
shareholders by providing regular update on the Group’s business developments.
The Group has established a comprehensive and current website at http://www.rpb.com.my to further
enhance investor relations and communication with shareholders, investors and general public to
access information such as group’s profile, products, financial performance and corporate information.
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Statement on Internal Control
1.0
Introduction
	The Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance
sets out the principles and best practices that
listed companies may apply in the direction and
management of their businesses towards achieving
the ultimate objective of maximizing shareholder
value. Companies are required to maintain a sound
internal control system with risk management and
corporate governance firmly embedded therein to
safeguard the interests of all stakeholders and the
Group’s assets. Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad
(“Bursa Securities”) Listing Requirements require
directors of listed companies to disclose in the
annual reports on the internal control system and
application of the principles and compliance with
Best Practices in Corporate Governance. Bursa
Securities’ Statement on Internal Control: Guidance
for Directors of Public Companies (“Guidance”)
sets out guidelines on compliance with these
requirements. Set out below is the Board’s Internal
Control and Corporate Governance Statement, which
has been prepared in accordance with the Guidance.
2.0

	The internal control framework for identifying and
managing key risks is assessed periodically by the
Group’s Audit Committee based on audit reports
presented by the Internal Audit Department and the
external auditors. It will continue to be reviewed,
updated and improved in line with changes in the
business environment.
4.0
Other key elements of internal control
	The other key elements of the Group’s internal
control system are summarised as follows :4.1

4.2

Responsibility
In the pursuit of business objectives, the Board
of Directors is cognizant of the importance of
sound internal controls and risk management as
the platform for the practice of good corporate
governance. The Board affirms its responsibility
for the Group’s risk oversight, risk management
and internal controls, and for independently and
objectively appraising the adequacy and integrity of
these systems including compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. The internal control
system is designed to meet the requirements of
different business units in their diverse operating
environment and to provide reasonable assurance
in the management of risks to which they are
exposed to. The concept of reasonable assurance
recognizes that the cost of control procedures
should not exceed the expected benefits derived.

4.3

4.4

Corporate governance
5.0
	The Board of Directors is responsible for charting
the Group’s strategic directions, establishing
and monitoring achievement of the goals. The
Board acknowledges responsibility for promoting
corporate governance in the Group through
its undertaking to continuously review and
monitor the Group’s systems and procedures. In
determining what is best practice governance, the
Group has considered the principles, practices and
recommendations that are in the best interests of
the shareholders and wider stakeholders to achieve
established goals and objectives.

3.0
Risk management process
	The Group has in place, a continuous process of
identifying, evaluating, managing and monitoring
significant risks which affect achievement of
business objectives. It takes into account cost
versus benefit of major risks, materiality and the
likelihood of these risks crystallising. The process
ensures risk management is integrated into all core
business processes and the organisation culture
reflects the risk consciousness of the Board. As
risks cannot be eliminated, ongoing reviews are
continuously carried out to identify and mitigate
key risks.
Reliance Pacific Berhad • Company No. 244521 A

Processes governing appraisal, approval
of capital / investment expenditure, asset
disposal, monitoring and evaluation of the
performance of investments are in place.
Budgets with financial and operating
targets, capital expenditure proposals and
performance indicators are reviewed and
approved by the Executive Director and
managers of the respective subsidiary
companies.
Financial performance reports benchmarked
against budgets and objectives are regularly
provided to the Group’s Senior Management
for monitoring and improving financial
results.
Reports of audits undertaken based on
approved annual Audit Plan are forwarded
to the Audit Committee and Management
concerned for their attention and necessary
actions.

	The Group has adopted comprehensive systems,
procedures and practices which it considers
will provide reasonable assurance on the
appropriateness and adequacy of the internal
control structure and operations within the changing
business environment.

16

Annual Report 2011

Audit Committee Report
1.0

Composition
Chairman :
		
		
Members :
		
		
		
		

2.3.4
Dato’ Abdul Rahim Bin Osman
Independent Non-Executive Director

2.3.5

Lim Guan Chin
Independent Non-Executive Director
Johan Arifin Sopiee Bin Mohamed Noordin
Independent Non-Executive Director

2.3.6
2.3.7

2.0

Terms of Reference
2.1
Authority
	The Audit Committee is authorised by the Board
to :2.1.1 be appropriately and adequately resourced
to perform its duties.
2.1.2 has full, unrestricted and timely access to
any information and documents relevant to
the Group.
2.1.3 have direct communication channels with
the external and internal auditors.
2.1.4 convene meetings with the external
and / or internal auditors, excluding the
attendance of the executive members of the
Committee, if deemed necessary.
2.1.5 obtain external legal or independent
professional advice and secure attendance,
if it considers necessary.
2.1.6 have explicit authority to investigate
any activities arising within its Terms of
Reference.
2.2

3.0
Summary of Activities of the Audit Committee
	The Audit Committee held seven (7) meetings during the
financial year ended 31 March 2011. The attendance of
each member of the Committee is as follows :Director
Attendance
Dato’ Abdul Rahim Bin Osman		
7/7
Lim Guan Chin		
7/7
Johan Arifin Sopiee Bin Mohamed Noordin
7/7
	The main activities carried out by the Audit Committee
during the financial year ended 31 March 2011 is
summarized as follows :• Reviewed the quarterly and year end financial
statements for the Board’s approval before
announcement to Bursa Securities
• Reviewed the audit plan of external and internal
auditors
• Assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
internal control system
• Reviewed the recurrent related party transactions

Frequency of Meetings
The Audit Committee shall meet not less than four
times a year with additional meetings convened
as and when required with the presence of the
Committee members. The presence of the external
auditors will be requested, if required.

2.3

Summary of activities of Internal Audit Function
4.0
	The Group’s Internal Audit Department (“the
Department”) reports to the Audit Committee on its
activities based on the annual Audit Plan. It evaluates
the operational efficiency, adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group’s internal controls to address and mitigate
material risks identified. The cost of internal audit for
the finacial year under review was RM285,000.

Duties and Responsibilities

	The duties and responsibilities of the Audit
Committee are to :2.3.1 Review the annual report, financial
statements of the Company and
consolidated financial statements of the
Group prior to the directors’ approvals.
2.3.2 Review adequacy of the functions,
resources and scope of the internal audit
to ensure it has the appropriate authority,
standing and employees’ cooperation to
function independently and effectively.
2.3.3 Assess adequacy of the operations, internal
controls and financial controls with the
external auditors.
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Review the annual audit plans and audit
reports with the external auditors.
Review the internal audit programme,
results of the internal audits or
investigations undertaken to ensure
appropriate and timely actions have been
taken on the audit recommendations.
Review any related party transactions that
may arise within the Company or the Group.
Review and recommend the appointment of
the external auditors and any questions of
resignation or dismissal.

	The Department independently tables audit reports
on the internal control system, risk exposure in key
business processes, non compliances with the Group’s
Policies and Procedures, management’s responses and
audit recommendations at Audit Committee meetings.
Audit recommendations take into account of the Group’s
strategic directions, objectives and fluid business
environment in which it operates. The Department also
updates the Audit Committee on the implementation or
rectification status of audit issues to ensure appropriate
and timely actions have been taken on agreed action
plans.
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1

2

3

4

1-3 Avillion Private Collections of luxury homes in Fraser’s Hill and Genting Highlands
setting the stage to build a chain of luxury homes in Asia for discerning international
travellers. 4 Lush greenery in a rustic setting in Avillion Port Dickson, an international
award winning hotel.

Hotel Division

Avillion had again won 3 international awards:
• World Luxury Awards 2010 and 2011
• Outstanding Beach Resort 2010
• Top 10 Health Resort 2010

Chairman’s Statement
On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased to present
the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements of
Reliance Pacific Berhad (RPB) and its group of companies
(Group), for the financial year ended 31 March 2011.

DIVISIONAL PERFORMANCE
Hotel Division
Our revenue and earnings are derived primarily from the
hotel operations which include the management and other
fees earned from hotels we manage and the operation of
RPB owned hotels.

INTRODUCTION
After the extremely challenging conditions for much of
2009/10, RPB saw some improvements in our business in
the financial year 2010/11.

Our hotel business model derives its revenue primarily from
the operation of hotels and resorts positioned in the upscale
and mid-end segment of the industry. As at 31 March 2011,
we have 5 properties under the Avillion brand namely
Avillion Port Dickson, Avillion Admiral Cove, Avillion Legacy
Malacca, Avillion Layang Layang and Admiral Marina &
Leisure Club. In total the room inventory is approximately
900 rooms.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2011, RPB
shareholders approved the divestment of certain Malaysian
travel subsidiaries at the EGM held on 31 March 2011. With
this divestment, RPB will put more emphasis on hotel and
property development businesses.

Due to the global economic crisis in US and Europe
and its impact on the long term growth outlook for the
industry during the year under review, the Hotel Division
performance did not record growth. Top-line performance
was the same as the last financial year ended 31 March
2010 due to the drastic curtailment of long haul travel into
Malaysia particularly from Europe for the aforesaid reasons.

GROUP PERFORMANCE
For the financial year ended 31 March 2011, RPB recorded
a Group turnover of RM504 million, an increase of 10% from
the previous year. RPB returned a positive bottom-line in
spite of the challenging operating environment marred
by the slow economic recovery in Europe and the US, the
Japan tsunami tragedy in March 2011 and high fuel prices
throughout most of the financial year under review. The
Group recorded a profit after tax and minority interest of
RM1.5 million, up from a loss of RM408,000 in the previous
year.

There was also a decline in profits primarily due to
expenditure in upgrading works of Avillion Port Dickson.
During the period when upgrading works were underway,
rooms were closed on a scheduled basis resulting in reduced
inventory for sale.
Avillion continues to make determined effort not to diminish
the brand experience it provides to our customers. We are
working hard to take the product, service and experiential
offerings to new levels. Hence, the maintenance and
upgrading works were necessary as our customers want to
feel that they are gaining real value that extends beyond
personalized, thoughtful delivery of services and world
class experiences which are the fundamental philosophies
of our business.

Having said the above, I am pleased to announce that
our delivery and service standards remained strong. We
are proud to mention that Avillion Hotel had again won 3
international awards in 2010, namely World Luxury Awards
2010, Outstanding Beach Resort 2010 and the top 10 Health
Resort 2010. It is also my pleasure to inform that Avillion
Hotel has also won the World Luxury Awards 2011 for the
second consecutive year.
We are one of the few home grown Malaysian hotel brand
to have been continuously recognized internationally for
consistently delivering great value to customers. These
awards together with many other accolades that we
received over the years are testaments to our product
quality and consistent levels of services in providing unique
experiences.

In the new financial year of 2011/12 we are launching
Avillion Private Collections. It is a collection of private
residences and homes located in various locations within
Asia. It’s core business model is to manage and market
these private residences and luxury homes to leisure and
corporate travellers throughout Asia.
In the second half of the 2011/12 financial year, we look
forward to the launch of Avillion Private Collections in
Malaysia and Bali. Moving forward, these initiatives are
expected to be positive for the Hotel Division to maximize
profits and strongly positioning us to expand the Avillion
brand in the region
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trends continue, we expect our financial results to improve
in the new financial year 2011/12.

Property Division
During the year under review, the Property Division
recorded a profit before tax of RM7.0 million primarily
as a result of positive contribution from its wholly owned
subsidiary, Admiral Marina Berhad and the gains from
property sales.

Barring any unforeseen rapid change in conditions, we
remain confident in the future of the Hotel Division.
As for the property sector, we are developing a mid end
township, Golden Envoy which should receive good take up
rate. Coupled with our proven track record and ability to
provide a wide range of products to suit the market demand,
confidence level of our consumers and capable management
team, we are confident of a generally better performance.

Moving forward into the new financial year, property
development will be the main business focus of RPB. In line
with this plan, the Property Division has acquired several
pieces of land with development potential.
In March 2011 we successfully acquired 100% equity in
Golden Envoy (M) Sdn Bhd (“Golden Envoy”) a company
principally engaged in property development. Golden
Envoy has entered into an agreement with Lembaga
Kemajuan Johor Tenggara (“KEJORA”) to develop a piece of
land in Johor. The land measuring 165 acres of integrated
mix development comprises of residential homes,
commercial shophouses, schools, college, community hall
and recreational facilities. This marks our foray into the
high growth state of Johor, the home of Iskandar Region
Development.

DIVIDENDS
For the financial year ended 31 March 2011, the Board of
Directors is not recommending any declaration of dividend.
APPRECIATION
On behalf of the Board, I would like to extend my heartfelt
gratitude to each and every one of our employees who has
remained committed and dedicated to the company and
continue to persevere with the company throughout the
years. To them, I would sincerely like to say thank you.

This new positioning will complement the Property Division’s
strong track record of developing vast mixed development
having had successfully developed it’s 100-acre flagship
integrated international marina resort in Admiral Cove, Port
Dickson in the 1990s.

Our utmost appreciation must also go to our business
partners for their continued support.

Plans are also afoot in planning for parcels of prime location
land it has acquired in Kuala Lumpur and Langkawi.

My appreciation also goes to my fellow Board members who
have been instrumental in providing guidance and valuable
insights to the management throughout the year.

Travel Division
Although the Travel Division recorded healthy top-line
growth of 25% during the financial review as compared
to the previous year, it recorded a before tax loss of
RM2.3 million. The loss is attributable to an aggressive
market share acquisition strategy where higher marketing
expenditure was incurred particularly for online marketing
and technology investments.

To our shareholders and customers, we thank you for your
confidence and support. We have built our business with you
in mind and will continue building value for shareholders
and customers alike.
Thank you.

PROSPECTS
Looking ahead, the Government is optimistic that Malaysia
will achieve a GDP growth of 6% for 2011 and the Economic
Transformation Programme (“ETP”) will be a vital component
to spearhead this growth. While the global economy will
continue to be unpredictable, the Group remains confident
that China and India will continue to be the engine of
economic growth for this region with its growth momentum
projected at 9.6% and 8.4% for 2011 respectively. If present
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Kota Tinggi @ Johor
Rumahku • Syurgaku
1

2

3

4

1 Developed by Golden Envoy, this new township of 165 acres located in Johor
comprises of residential homes, commercial shop houses, schools, college, community
hall and recreational facilities. 2-4 A serene enclave of Admiral Marina with stately
homes of Marina Mansion Bungalows, Marina Bay and Marina Crescent on the backdrop

Property Division

Magnificent view of Admiral Cove, our award winning
development conceptualized out of a dream to create a
world-class integrated international marina resort.

Reliance Travel Fair, an ever popular and eagerly
awaited twice-a-year event among the public.

Travel Division

The only Malaysian Travel Company to have been awarded
the Top 10 Master Brand Award by the Asia Pacific Brand
Laureate Foundation for the year 2010/11. Reliance has
received this honour for the 5th consecutive year.

Financial Statement

RELIANCE PACIFIC BERHAD

244521 A

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
The directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited financial statements of the
Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2011.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is principally engaged in investment holding and provision of management services.
The principal activities of the subsidiary companies are set out in Note 10 to the financial
statements.
There have been no significant changes in the nature of these principal activities of the Group
and of the Company during the current financial year.
RESULTS

Net profit for the year attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Minority interest

Group
RM’000

Company
RM’000

1,528
(842)

15,830
-

686

15,830

DIVIDENDS
No dividend has been paid, declared or proposed by the Company since the end of the previous
financial year.
The directors do not recommend any final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31
March 2011.
RESERVES AND PROVISIONS
Material transfers to or from reserves and provisions during the current financial year are shown
in the statements of changes in equity.
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Directors’ Report…cont’d.
VALUATION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances that have arisen
which render adherence to the existing methods of valuation of assets and liabilities of the Group
and of the Company misleading or inappropriate.

BAD DEBTS AND ALLOWANCE FOR IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the directors
took reasonable steps to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off
of bad debts and the making of allowance for impairment losses and satisfied themselves that all
known bad debts had been written off and adequate allowance for impairment losses had been
made.
At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances that would render the
amount written off for bad debts, or the amount of the allowance for impairment losses, in the
Group and in the Company, inadequate to any substantial extent.
ITEMS OF A MATERIAL AND UNUSUAL NATURE
The results of the operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended
31 March 2011 were not, in the opinion of the directors, substantially affected by any item,
transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.
There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this
report any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the
directors, to affect substantially the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company
for the current financial year.
CURRENT ASSETS
Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the directors
have taken reasonable steps to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to be realised
in the ordinary course of business, including their values as shown in the accounting records,
have been written down to an amount which they might be expected to realise.
At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances that would render the
values attributed to the current assets in the respective financial statements of the Group and of
the Company misleading.
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Directors’ Report…cont’d.
CONTINGENT AND OTHER LIABILITIES
At the date of this report, there does not exist:
i)

any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end
of the financial year which secures the liabilities of any other person; or

ii)

any contingent liability in respect of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since
the end of the financial year other than those disclosed in Note 34 to the financial statements.

No contingent or other liability has become enforceable, or is likely to become enforceable within
the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the
directors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet
their obligations as and when they fall due.
DIRECTORS AND THEIR SHAREHOLDINGS
The directors in office since the date of the last report and at the date of this report are as follows:
Dato’ Gan Eng Kwong
Datin Irene Tan
Dato’ Abdul Rahim Bin Osman
Lim Guan Chin
Johan Arifin Sopiee Bin Mohamed Noordin
Dato’ Samsudin Bin Abu Hassan
Tan Sin Chong

(Appointed w.e.f 02.04.2011)
(Appointed w.e.f 29.04.2011)

In accordance with the registers required to be kept under Section 134 of the Companies Act,
1965, the directors’ interest in shares in the Company in respect of directors who were in office
at the end of the financial year are as follows:
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Directors’ Report…cont’d.
DIRECTORS AND THEIR SHAREHOLDINGS (Cont’d)
Number of Ordinary Shares of RM0.20 each
Balance
as at
01.04.2010

Acquired

Sold

Balance
as at
31.03.2011

1,479,150

5,153,600

-

6,632,750

252,500

-

(104,700)

147,800

1,107,700

-

(892,300)

215,400

Dato’ Gan Eng Kwong

497,578,195

18,556,400

(23,710,000)

492,424,595

Datin Irene Tan

499,057,345

23,710,000

(23,710,000)

499,057,345

Lim Guan Chin

903,750

-

-

903,750

Tan Sin Chong

10,448,400

-

(1,164,100)

9,284,300

Direct Holding:
Dato’ Gan Eng Kwong
Dato’ Abdul Rahim Bin Osman
Tan Sin Chong
Indirect Holding:

By virtue of their substantial interest in the Company, Dato’ Gan Eng Kwong and Datin Irene
Tan are deemed to have an interest in the shares in the subsidiary companies to the extent the
Company has an interest.
Other than as disclosed above, none of the other directors held any interest in shares in the
Company or in shares in its related companies.
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Directors’ Report…cont’d.
DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS
Since the end of the previous financial year, no director of the Company has received or become
entitled to receive any benefit (other than benefits and related party transactions disclosed
in Note 27 and 35 respectively) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related
corporation with the director or with a firm of which the director is a member, or with a company
in which the director has a substantial financial interest.
During and at the end of the financial year, no arrangements subsisted to which the Company
is a party, with the object or objects of enabling directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AND EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
The significant events and events occurring after the reporting date are disclosed in Note 38 and
Note 39 to the financial statements respectively.
CHANGE OF CIRCUMSTANCES
At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances, not otherwise dealt
with in this report or the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, which would
render any amount stated in the respective financial statements misleading.

AUDITORS
The auditors, AljeffriDean, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the directors,

Datin Irene Tan
Director

Tan Sin Chong
Director

Kuala Lumpur,
Date: 27 July 2011
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS

PURSUANT TO SECTION 169(15) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965
We, Datin Irene Tan and Tan Sin Chong, being the directors of Reliance Pacific Berhad, do hereby state on behalf of the directors
that in our opinion, the financial statements set out on pages 35 to 123 are properly drawn up in accordance with the applicable
approved accounting standards for entities other than private entities issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board and the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1965 so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as
at 31 March 2011 and of the results and the cash flows for the financial year ended on that date.
In the opinion of the directors, the information set out in Note 43 to the financial statements has been compiled in accordance
with the Guidance on Special Matter No.1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosures
Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants, and presented
based on the format prescribed by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the directors,

Tan Sin Chong
Director

Datin Irene Tan
Director
Kuala Lumpur,
Date: 27 July 2011

STATUTORY DECLARATION

PURSUANT TO SECTION 169(16) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965
I, Chong Set Fui, being the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of Reliance Pacific Berhad, do solemnly and
sincerely declare that the financial statements set out on pages 35 to 123 are to the best of my knowledge and belief correct,
and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory
Declarations Act, 1960.
Subscribed and solemnly declared		

)

by Chong Set Fui

)

at Wilayah Persekutuan Kuala Lumpur		
		
on this day of 27 July 2011 		

)
)
Chong Set Fui

Before me,					

Commissioner for Oaths
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF RELIANCE PACIFIC BERHAD
(244521 A)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the financial statements of Reliance Pacific Berhad, which comprise the statements
of financial position as at 31 March 2011 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of
comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and
of the Company for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes, as set out on pages 35 to 123.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with the applicable approved accounting standards for entities other than private
entities and the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with the applicable
approved accounting standards for entities other than private entities and the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the
Company as of 31 March 2011 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended.
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Independent Auditors’ Report...cont’d.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the following:
a)

In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by
the Company and its subsidiaries of which we have acted as auditors have been properly kept in
accordance with the provisions of the Act.

b)

We have considered the financial statements and the auditors’ reports of all the subsidiaries of
which we have not acted as auditors, which are indicated in Note 10 to the financial statements.

c)

We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with
the Company’s financial statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes
of the preparation of the financial statements of the Group and we have received satisfactory
information and explanations required by us for those purposes.

d) 	The audit reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries did not contain any qualification
or any adverse comment made under Section 174(3) of the Act.
Other Reporting Responsibilities
The supplementary information set out in Note 43 is disclosed to meet the requirement of Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad and is not part of the financial statements. The directors are responsible for
the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1,
Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants
(“MIA Guidance”) and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. In our opinion, the supplementary
information is prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the MIA Guidance and the directive of
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad
Other Matters
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of
the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any
other person for the content of this report.

Mohd Neezal Noordin
AljeffriDean
AF 1366	No.: 2162/06/13 (J)
Chartered Accountants (Malaysia)
Kuala Lumpur,
Date: 27 July 2011

34

RELIANCE PACIFIC BERHAD

244521 A

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2011

GROUP
31.03.2010
RM'000

01.04.2009
RM'000

(As restated)

(As restated)

234,927
76,695
1,867
20,542
83
606
527
54

246,423
30,070
15,755
41,959
112
6,105
943
564

249,826
27,113
15,775
41,959
219
6,713
1,113
1,732

212
37,216
-

108
59,689
-

335,301

341,931

344,450

37,428

59,797

22,806
148,092
15,762
35,037

22,957
221,939
22,037
11,028

7,833
22,752
198,381
17,119
20,763

79,256
183,502
11,155
28,328

5,336
283,677
11,155
111

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

221,697

277,961

266,848

302,241

300,279

TOTAL ASSETS

556,998

619,892

611,298

339,669

360,076

17
18
25

42,921
58,916
40,000

34,500
91,978
45,000

44,974
75,945
-

2,732
29,990
40,000

1,703
27,984
45,000

19

55
199

34
1,899

169
2,193

20
-

604

142,091

173,411

123,281

72,742

75,291

79,606

104,550

143,567

229,499

224,988

414,907

446,481

488,017

266,927

284,785

NOTE

31.03.2011
RM'000

COMPANY
31.03.2011 31.03.2010
RM'000
RM'000

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Land held for development
Investment properties
Goodwill arising on consolidation
Investment in associates
Subsidiary companies
Investments
Deferred and development expenditure
Deferred tax assets

5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Development properties
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Amount due from subsidiaries
Fixed and call deposits
Cash and bank balances

6
14
15
16

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Short term borrowings
Collaterised loan obligation (CLO)
Hire purchase and
finance lease payables
Provision for taxation
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
NET CURRENT ASSETS

The notes set out on pages 44 to 123 form an integral part of, and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.
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Statements of Financial Position…cont’d.

NOTE

31.03.2011
RM'000

GROUP
31.03.2010
RM'000

01.04.2009
RM'000

(As restated)

(As restated)

COMPANY
31.03.2011 31.03.2010
RM'000
RM'000

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Share capital
Reserves

20
21

171,710
170,540

171,710
168,536

171,710
171,969

171,710
45,139

171,710
29,309

Equity attributable to
equity holders of the parent
Minority interest

22

342,250
5,491

340,246
(650)

343,679
(1,526)

216,849
-

201,019
-

347,741

339,596

342,153

216,849

201,019

TOTAL EQUITY
NON-CURRENT AND
DEFERRED LIABILITIES
Advance from joint venture shareholder
Term loans
Collaterised loan obligation (CLO)
Hire purchase and finance lease payables

23
24
25
19

66,458
171

8,686
57,958
40,000
-

7,296
53,300
85,000
34

50,000
62

43,750
40,000
-

Deferred tax liabilities
TOTAL NON-CURRENT
AND DEFERRED LIABILITIES

13

537

241

234

16

16

67,166

106,885

145,864

50,078

83,766

414,907

446,481

488,017

266,927

284,785

The notes set out on pages 44 to 123 form an integral part of, and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.
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INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

NOTE

GROUP
2011
2010
RM'000
RM'000

COMPANY
2011
2010
RM'000
RM'000

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue
Cost of sales

26
26

504,366
(430,122)

457,279
(382,472)

9,813
-

13,249
-

Gross profit

74,244

74,807

9,813

13,249

Other operating income

13,670

1,502

140

152

(73,106)

(608)
(58,447)

(13,186)

(2,629)

Allowance for diminution in value of investment
Administrative expenses
Profit/(loss) from operations

27

14,808

17,254

(3,233)

10,772

Finance costs
Share of results of associates

28

(13,453)
(29)

(14,215)
(107)

(9,046)
-

(10,647)

1,326

2,932

(12,279)

125

1,175
746

-

28,458

-

3,247

2,932

16,179

125

(2,430)

(2,236)

(349)

(51)

817

696

15,830

74

(131)

(228)

-

-

686

468

15,830

74

1,528
(842)

(408)
876

15,830
-

74
-

686

468

15,830

74

0.19
(0.01)

(0.03)
(0.01)

0.18

(0.04)

Profit/(loss) from continuing operations before
winding up and disposal of subsidiary companies
Net effect on winding up subsidiary companies
Gain on disposal of subsidiary companies

44
31

Profit before taxation
Taxation

29

Net profit from continuing operations
DISCONTINUED OPERATION
Net loss from discontinued operation, net of tax

40

Net profit for the year

-

Net profit for the year attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Minority interest

Basic earnings/(losses) per share (sen)
From continuing operations
From discontinued operation

30

The notes set out on pages 44 to 123 form an integral part of, and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
GROUP
2011
2010
RM'000
RM'000
Net profit for the year

COMPANY
2011
2010
RM'000
RM'000

686

468

15,830

74

Foreign currency translation
- Exchange differences on translating foreign operations
- Transfer to profit or loss upon disposal
- Transfer to profit or loss upon winding up

2,192
3,257
(1,834)

(3,025)
-

-

-

Net changes in fair value of available-for-sale
- Loss on fair value changes
- Transfer to profit or loss upon disposal
Revaluation surplus

(1,508)
(3,015)
633

-

-

-

(275)

(3,025)

-

-

411

(2,557)

15,830

74

1,253
(842)

(3,433)
876

15,830
-

74
-

411

(2,557)

15,830

74

Other comprehensive income/(loss):

Other comprehensive loss for the year
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year
Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Minority interest

The notes set out on pages 44 to 123 form an integral part of, and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

GROUP

NOTE

Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent
Non-Distributable
Distributable
AvailableForeign
Share
Share
ForCurrency
Share Premium Buy-Back
Sale Translation Revaluation Accumulated
Capital Reserve Reserve
Reserve
Reserve
Reserve
Profit
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
RM'000
RM'000
RM'000
RM'000

Total
RM'000

64,082 343,679

Minority
Interest
RM'000

Total
Equity
RM'000

Balance as at 01.04.2009

171,710

19,911

8,930

-

(125)

79,171

Total comprehensive loss
for the year

-

-

-

-

(3,025)

-

Balance as at 31.03.2010

171,710

19,911

8,930

-

(3,150)

79,171

-

-

-

-

-

-

Balance as at 31.03.2010
- as restated
Total comprehensive
income for the year
Disposal of subsidiary
companies
Effect on winding up of
subsidiary companies

171,710

19,911

8,930

-

(3,150)

79,171

-

-

-

(4,523)

3,615

633

1,528

1,253

(842)

411

-

-

-

-

-

(6,693)

6,693

-

89

89

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

6,894

6,894

Balance as at 31.03.2011

171,710

19,911

8,930

(4,523)

465

73,111

(408)

(1,526) 342,153

(3,433)

63,674 340,246

876

(2,557)

(650) 339,596

- as previously reported
Effect of adopting FRS139

3.1

751

751

64,425 340,997

72,646 342,250

-

(650) 340,347

5,491 347,741

The notes set out on pages 44 to 123 form an integral part of, and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

COMPANY
Share
Capital
RM'000
Balance as at 01.04.2009
Total comprehensive income for the year
Balance as at 31.03.2010
Total comprehensive income for the year
Balance as at 31.03.2011

Non-Distributable
Distributable
Share
Share
Premium
Buy-Back Accumulated
Reserve
Reserve
Profit
RM'000
RM'000
RM'000

Total
RM'000

171,710

19,911

8,930

394

200,945

-

-

-

74

74

171,710

19,911

8,930

468

201,019

-

-

-

15,830

15,830

171,710

19,911

8,930

16,298

216,849

The notes set out on pages 44 to 123 form an integral part of, and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
NOTE

GROUP
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

COMPANY
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

(As restated)

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(Loss) before taxation
- continuing operations
- discontinued operations

3,247
(131)

2,932
(228)

16,179
-

125
-

Total profit before taxation

3,116

2,704

16,179

125

3,772
40
128
219
225
29
471
13,453
12
(198)
(3,257)
(746)
(8,613)
(1,175)
(63)
(6)
(1,508)
-

3,938
40
113
107
608
304
14,215
22
(136)
(184)
-

66
9,046
8,771
(140)
(28,458)
(7,000)

55
10,647
(152)
(7,241)

5,899

21,731

(1,536)

3,434

Adjustments for :
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of investment properties
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment written off
Revaluation deficit
Share of result of associates
Allowance for diminution in value of investment
Deferred expenditure written off
Interest expenses
Allowance for impairment losses
Written off due to winding up subsidiaries
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
Gain on disposal of subsidiary companies
Gain on disposal of investment properties
Net effect on winding up of subsidiary companies
Interest income
Realised gain on foreign exchange
Fair value changes on available-for-sale investment
Gross dividend income

31

Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes

The notes set out on pages 44 to 123 form an integral part of, and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows…cont’d.

NOTE

GROUP
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

COMPANY
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

(As restated)

Increase in inventories
(Increase)/Decrease in receivables
Increase/(Decrease) in payables
Decrease in development properties

(468)
(108,898)
192,866
-

(197)
(24,841)
(10,670)
7,833

38,015
1,029
-

(5,757)
194
-

(56)

(132)

-

-

89,343
(2,689)
(13,453)

(6,276)
(1,390)
(14,215)

37,508
(711)
(9,047)

(2,129)
(74)
(10,647)

73,201

(21,881)

27,750

(12,850)

31

125
27,932
26,000

97
-

138
30,159
-

-

32

(333)
(7,926)
-

(4,458)
(20)

(68)
-

(6)
-

(48,050)
63

768
136

7,000
-

7,241
-

(2,189)

(3,477)

37,229

7,235

Increase in deferred expenditure
Cash generated from/(used in) operating activities
Tax paid
Interest paid
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment
Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiary companies
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties
Net cash outflow from winding up subsidiary
companies
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of investment properties
(Increase)/Decrease of land held
for development
Net dividend received
Interest income
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities

The notes set out on pages 44 to 123 form an integral part of, and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows…cont’d.

NOTE

GROUP
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

COMPANY
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

(As restated)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of CLO
Repayment of term loan
Repayment of short term borrowings
Repayment of hire purchase and
finance lease payables

37,576
(45,000)
(19,905)
(16,444)

32,482
(9,469)
-

15,000
(45,000)
(3,750)
-

-

(88)

(169)

(18)

-

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities

(43,861)

22,844

(33,768)

-

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Effects of exchange rate changes
on cash and cash equivalents

27,151
(14,498)

(2,514)
(12,004)

31,211
(10,468)

(5,615)
(4,853)

(343)

20

-

-

12,310

(14,498)

20,743

(10,468)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

33

The notes set out on pages 44 to 123 form an integral part of, and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

1.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GENERAL INFORMATION
The Company is principally engaged in investment holding and provision of management
services. The principal activities of the subsidiary companies are set out in Note 10 to the
financial statements.
There have been no significant changes in the nature of these principal activities of the
Group and of the Company during the current financial year.
The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia
and listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
The Board of Directors authorised these financial statements for issue on 27 July 2011.

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared on a
historical cost convention and modified to include other bases of valuation as indicated in
the summary of significant accounting policies, and are drawn up in accordance with the
applicable Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“MASB”) approved accounting standards
for entities other than private entities in Malaysia and the provisions of the Companies Act,
1965. These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Group and by the Company
and are consistent with those used in the previous financial year.
The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (RM’000) except when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements…cont’d.
3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3.1)

Effects Adopting New/Revised FRSs and Amendments and Interpretation
The Group and the Company have applied the following new/revised FRSs and
Amendments and Interpretation that are relevant to its operations which are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2010 unless otherwise stated :
New/Revised FRSs and
Amendments and
Interpretation

Title

Effective Date

FRS 7

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

01 January 2010

FRS 8

Operating Segments

01 July 2009

FRS 101

Presentation of Financial Statements (revised)

01 January 2010

FRS 139

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

01 January 2010

Amendments to FRS 1 and
FRS 127

01 January 2010

Amendment to FRS 8

First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting
Standards and Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements: Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate
Operating Segments

Amendment to FRS 107

Statement of Cash Flows

01 January 2010

Amendment to FRS 108

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors

01 January 2010

Amendment to FRS 110

Events After the Reporting Period

01 January 2010

Amendment to FRS 116

Property, Plant and Equipment

01 January 2010

Amendment to FRS 117

Leases

01 January 2010

Amendment to FRS 118

Revenue

01 January 2010

Amendment to FRS 119

Employee Benefits

01 January 2010

Amendment to FRS 127

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

01 January 2010

Amendment to FRS 128

Investments in Associates

01 January 2010

Amendment to FRS 132

Financial Instruments: Presentation

01 January 2010

Amendment to FRS 134

Interim Financial Reporting

01 January 2010

Amendment to FRS 136

Impairment of Asset

01 January 2010

Amendment to FRS 139

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

01 January 2010

Amendment to FRS 7

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

01 January 2010

IC Interpretation 10

Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

01 January 2010
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Notes to the Financial Statements…cont’d.
3.1)

Effects Adopting New/Revised FRSs and Amendments and Interpretation...cont’d
The adoption of the relevant new/revised FRSs and Amendments and Interpretation
did not have any effect on the financial performance or position of the Group and
of the Company except for those discussed below:
FRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
Prior to 01 January 2010, information about financial instruments was disclosed in
accordance with the requirements of FRS 132 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and
Presentation. FRS 7 introduces new disclosures to improve the information about
financial instruments. It requires the disclosure of qualitative and quantitative
information about exposure to risks arising from financial instruments, including
specified minimum disclosures about credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk,
including sensitivity analysis to market risk.
The Group and the Company has applied FRS 7 prospectively in accordance with
the transitional provisions. Hence, the new disclosures have not been applied to
the comparatives. The new disclosures are included throughout the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2011.

FRS 8 Operating Segments
FRS 8, which replaces FRS 114 Segment Reporting, specifies how an entity should
report information about its operating segments, based on information about the
components of the entity that is available to the chief operating decision maker
for the purposes of allocating resources to the segments and assessing their
performance. The standard also requires the disclosure of information about the
products and services provided by the segments, the geographical areas in which
the Group operates, and revenue from the Group’s major customers. The Group
concluded that the reportable operating segments determined in accordance with
FRS 8 are the same as the business segments previously identified under FRS 114.
The Group has adopted FRS 8 retrospectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements…cont’d.
3.1)
		

Effects Adopting New/Revised FRSs and Amendments and Interpretation...cont’d
FRS 101 Presentation of Financial Statements (Revised)
The revised FRS 101 introduces changes in the presentation and disclosures of
financial statements. The revised standard separates owner and non-owner changes
in equity. The statements of changes in equity include only details of transactions
with owners, with all non-owner changes in equity presented as a single line. The
standard also introduces the statements of comprehensive income, with all items
of income and expense recognised in profit or loss, together with all other items of
recognised income and expense recognised directly in equity, either in one single
statement, or in two linked statements. The Group and the Company has elected to
present this statement as two linked statements.
In addition, a statements of financial position is required at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period following a change in accounting policy, the correction
of an error or the classification of items in the financial statements.
The revised FRS 101 also requires the Group and the Company to make new
disclosures to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the Group’s and
the Company’s objectives, policies and processes for managing capital.
The revised FRS 101 was adopted retrospectively by the Group and by the Company.
Amendment to FRS 117 Leases
The amendments to FRS 117: Leases clarify that leases of land and buildings are
classified as operating or finance leases in the same way as leases of other assets.
They also clarify that the present value of the residual value of the property in a
lease with a term of several decades would be negligible and accounting for the
land element as a finance lease in such circumstances would be consistent with the
economic position of the lessee. Hence, the adoption of the amendment to FRS 117
has resulted in certain unexpired land leases to be reclassified as finance leases.
The Group has applied this change in accounting policy retrospectively and certain
comparatives have been restated as disclosed in Note 41 to the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements…cont’d.
3.1)

Effects Adopting New/Revised FRSs and Amendments and Interpretation...cont’d
FRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
FRS 139 establishes principles for recognising and measuring financial assets,
financial liabilities and some contracts to buy and sell non-financial items. The
Group and the Company have adopted FRS 139 prospectively on 01 April 2010
in accordance with the transitional provisions. In accordance to the transitional
provisions of FRS 139 for first-time adoption, adjustments arising from remeasuring
the financial instruments at the beginning of the financial year were recognised as
adjustments of the opening balance of accumulated profit or another appropriate
reserve. Comparatives are not restated. The adoption of this standard has no
material impact on the financial statements as at 01 April 2010 unless otherwise
stated. The details of the changes in accounting policies and the effects arising from
the adoption of FRS 139 are discussed below:

Equity instruments
Prior to 01 April 2010, the Group classified its investments in equity instruments
which were held for non-trading purposes as non-current investments. Such
investments were carried at the lower of cost and market value. Upon the adoption
of FRS 139, these investments are designated as available-for-sale investments and
accordingly are stated at their fair values.

Derivatives
Prior to 01 April 2010, derivative contracts were recognised in the financial
statements on settlement date. With the adoption of FRS 139, derivative contracts
are now categorised as fair value through profit or loss and measured at their fair
values with the gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of trade receivables
Prior to 01 April 2010, provision for doubtful debts was recognised when it was
considered uncollectible. Upon the adoption of FRS 139, an impairment loss is
recognised when there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred. The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
receivable’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the receivable’s original effective interest rate.
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3.1)

Effects Adopting New/Revised FRSs and Amendments and Interpretation...cont’d

Inter-company loans
Prior to 01 April 2010, inter-company loans were recorded at cost. With the
adoption of FRS 139, inter-company loans are now recognised initially at their
fair values, which are estimated by discounting the expected cash flows using the
current market interest rate of a loan with similar risk and tenure. Finance income
and costs are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts
Prior to 01 April 2010, financial guarantee contracts were not recognised in the
statements of financial position unless it becomes probable that the guarantee may
be called upon. With the adoption of FRS 139, financial guarantee contracts are now
recognised initially at their fair values and subsequently measured at their initially
measured amount less cumulative amortisation. When settlement of a financial
guarantee contract becomes probable, an estimate of the obligation is made.
The followings are effect arising from the above changes in the accounting policies:
GROUP
RM’000

Accumulated profit :
Opening balance as at 31 March 2010 as previously reported

63,674

Available-for-sale investments

795

Derivative instruments

(44)

Opening balance as at 31 March 2010 as restated
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3.2)

New/Revised FRSs and Amendments and Interpretations Not Yet Effective
The Group and the Company have not applied the following new/revised FRSs and
Amendments and Interpretation that are relevant to its operations which have been
issued but are not yet effective :
FRS 1

First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting
Standards (revised)

01 July 2010

FRS 3

Business Combinations (revised)

01 July 2010

FRS 127

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements (revised)

01 July 2010

Amendment to FRS 138

Intangible Assets

01 July 2010

IC Interpretation 15

Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

01 July 2010

Amendment to FRS 1

Limited Exemption from Comparative FRS 7
Disclosures for First-time Adopters

01 January 2011

Amendment to FRS 1

Addition Exemption for First-time Adopters

01 January 2011

Amendment to FRS 7

Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments

01 January 2011

Amendment to FRS 7

Financial instruments: Disclosures
[Improvements to FRSs (2010)]

01 January 2011

Amendment to FRS 101

Presentation of Financial Statements
[Improvements to FRSs (2010)]

01 January 2011

Amendment to FRS 121

The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates [Improvements to FRSs (2010)]

01 January 2011

Amendment to FRS 128

Investments in Associates
[Improvements to FRSs (2010)]

01 January 2011

Amendment to FRS 132

Financial Instruments: Presentation
[Improvements to FRSs (2010)]

01 January 2011

Amendment to FRS 134

Interim Financial Reporting
[Improvements to FRSs (2010)]

01 January 2011

Amendments to FRS 139

Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement

01 January 2011

FRS 124

Related Party Disclosures (revised)

01 January 2012
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3.2)

New/Revised FRSs and Amendments and Interpretations Not Yet Effective ...cont’d
The adoption of the abovementioned relevant new/revised FRSs and Amendments
and Interpretations did not have any effect on the financial performance or position
of the Group and of the Company unless described below.
FRS 3 Business Combinations and Amendment to FRS 127 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements
The revised FRS 3 introduces a number of changes in the accounting for business
combinations occurring after 01 July 2010. These changes will impact the amount
of goodwill recognised, the reported results in the period that an acquisition occurs,
and future reported results. The Amendment to FRS 127 requires that a change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary (without loss of control) is accounted
for as an equity transaction. Therefore, such transactions will no longer give rise
to goodwill, nor will they give rise to a gain or loss. Furthermore, the amended
standard changes the accounting for losses incurred by the subsidiary as well as the
loss of control of a subsidiary.
Other consequential amendments have been made to FRS 107 Statement of Cash
Flows, FRS 112 Income Taxes, FRS 121 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates, FRS 128 Investments in Associates and FRS 131 Interests in Joint Ventures.
The changes from revised FRS 3 and Amendments to FRS 127 will affect future
acquisitions or loss of control and transactions with non-controlling interests. The
standards may be early adopted. However, the Group does not intend to early adopt.
IC Interpretation 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
This interpretation clarifies when and how the revenue and related expenses from
the sale of a real estate unit sold should be recognised if an agreement between
a developer and a buyer is reached before the construction of the real estate is
completed. Furthermore, the Interpretation provides guidance on how to determine
whether an agreement is within the scope of FRS 111 Construction Contracts or
FRS 118 Revenue.
The Group currently recognises revenue arising from property development projects
using the stage of completion method. Upon the adoption of this Interpretation, the
Group may be required to change its accounting policy to recognise such revenues
at completion, or upon after delivery. The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of the impact of this Interpretation.
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3.3)

Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements of the Group and the Company are presented in Ringgit
Malaysia, which is the functional and presentation currency of the Group and of the
Company.

3.4)

Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
subsidiary companies made up to the end of the financial year. The total profit and
losses of subsidiary companies are included in the Group’s profit or loss.
Minority interests at the reporting date, being the portion of the net assets of
the subsidiary attributable to equity interests that is not owned by the Company,
whether directly or indirectly through the subsidiary, is presented in the statements
of financial position and statements of changes in equity within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Minority
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face of the profit or loss
as an allocation of the total profit or loss for the year between minority interests
and the equity shareholders of the Company.
Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority’s interest in the equity
of a subsidiary, the excess, and any further losses applicable to the minority are
charged against the Group’s interest except to the extent that the minority has a
binding obligation to, and is able to, make additional investment to cover the losses.
If the subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the Group’s interest is allocated all
such profits until the minority’s share of losses previously absorbed by the Group
has been recovered.
All the subsidiary companies are consolidated on the acquisition method of accounting
where the results of the subsidiary companies acquired or disposed of during the
current financial year are included from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group and are no longer consolidated from the date on which the control
ceases. At the date of acquisition, the fair values of the subsidiary companies’ net
assets are determined and these values are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. The gain or loss on disposal of a subsidiary is the difference between
net disposal proceeds and the Group’s share of its net assets.
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3.4)

Basis of Consolidation...cont’d
The total assets and liabilities of subsidiary companies are included in the Group’s
statements of financial position. All significant inter-company transactions and
balances are eliminated on consolidation. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiary companies to ensure consistency of
accounting policies with those of the Group.
Goodwill on acquisition, being the difference between the cost of acquisition and the
underlying net asset value of the subsidiary companies at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill is carried at cost less impairment and is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired. The impairment loss of goodwill is recognised immediately in the profit
or loss and is not reversed in a subsequent period.
Negative goodwill represents the excess of the Group’s interest in the fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary at the date of acquisition over
the cost of acquisition. Negative goodwill is recognised immediately in the profit
or loss.

3.5)

Subsidiary Companies
Subsidiary companies are the companies in which the Group has long term equity
interest of more than 50% or has power to exercise control over the financial and
operating policies as to obtain benefits from their activities.
Investments in subsidiary companies, which are eliminated on consolidation, are
stated in the Company’s financial statements at cost, less impairment losses. The
policy for the recognition and measurement of impairment losses is in accordance
with Note 3.10 to the financial statements.

3.6)

Associate Companies
An associate company is defined as an investment where the Group holds for
long-term purposes between 20% to 50% of the issued equity share capital of the
investee’s company, and exercises significant influence but not control, over the
investee’s company management.
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3.6)

Associate Companies...cont’d
Investment in associate companies are accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting based on the management
financial statements of the investee’s company made up to the end of the financial
year. The Group’s share of post-acquisition reserves and accumulated profit less
losses is added to the carrying value of the investment in the consolidated statement
of financial position.
When the Group’s share of post-acquisition losses exceeds its interest in an equity
accounted associate, the carrying amount of that interest (including any long-term
investments) is reduced to nil and the recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has made payments on
behalf of the associate.
Unrealised profits arising from transactions between the Group and its associate are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in the associate. Unrealised losses
on such transactions are also eliminated partially, unless cost cannot be recovered.

3.7)

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The policy for the recognition and
measurement of impairment losses is in accordance with Note 3.10 to the financial
statements.
The revaluations are made at least once in every five years based on a valuation by an
independent valuer. Any revaluation surplus is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under revaluation reserve, except to the extent
that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised
as an expense, in which case the increase is recognised in the profit or loss to the
extent of the decrease previously recognised. A revaluation decrease is first offset
against unutilised previously recognised revaluation surplus in respect of the same
asset and the balance thereafter recognised as an expense.
Freehold land is not depreciated and leasehold land and buildings is amortised over
the lease term. Depreciation also is not provided for freehold office lots, certain
buildings and those properties with an unexpired lease period of 50 years or more
as the Group’s practice is to maintain the properties in a great condition and non-
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3.7)

Property, Plant and Equipment...cont’d
compliance will have no material effect on the financial statements. The related
maintenance expenditure is charged to the profit or loss.
Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is computed on a straight line
method at rates calculated to write off the cost of assets over their estimated useful
lives. The principal annual rates used are as follows:
						
Motor vehicles		
Furniture and fittings			
Office equipment
		
Data processing equipment		
Electrical installation			
Motor vehicles workshop			
Renovations					
Boats						
Computer integrated systems		

%
10-20
10
10
20
10
10
10
15
10

The residual values, useful live and depreciation method are reviewed at each
financial year end to ensure that the amount, method and period of depreciation are
consistent with previous estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the
future economic benefits embodied in the items of property, plant and equipment.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The difference
between the net disposal proceeds, if any and the net carrying amount is recognised
in the profit or loss and the unutilised portion of the revaluation surplus on that
item is taken directly to the accumulated profit.
3.8)

Prepaid Land Lease Payments
The Group had previously classified leasehold land that normally has indefinitely
economic life and title is not expected to pass to the lessee by the end of the
lease term is treated as an operating lease. The payment made on entering into or
acquiring a leasehold land is accounted for as prepaid land lease payments and is
amortised over the lease term period.
Upon adoption of FRS 117, leases of leasehold land which in substance is a finance
lease has been reclassified to property, plant and equipment and measured as such
retrospectively.
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3.9)

Investment Properties
Investment properties are property which are held either to earn rental income or
for capital appreciation or both. The Group measured its investment at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. However, no depreciation is
provided for freehold office lots as the directors are of the opinion that its market
value is far greater than the carrying amount and that the non-compliance will have
no material effect on the financial statements. Freehold land is not depreciated as
it has an infinite life except for freehold office lots.
Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or
when the investment properties are permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss on the retirement
or disposal of an investment property is recognised in profit or loss in the year of
retirement or disposal.
Transfers are made to or from investment properties only when there is a change
in use. For a transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property, the
deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use.
For a transfer from owner-occupied property to investment property, the property
is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy for property, plant and
equipment up to the date of change in use.

3.10) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
At each statements of financial position date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.
If any such indication exists, impairment is measured by comparing the carrying
amounts of the assets with their recoverable amounts. Recoverable amounts are
the higher of net selling price and value in use, which is measured by reference to
discounted future cash flows.
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the profit or loss immediately,
unless the assets are carried at a revalued amount. Any impairment losses
of revalued assets are treated as a revaluation decrease to the extent of any
unutilised previously recognised revaluation surplus for the same assets. Reversal
of impairment losses recognised in previous years for assets other than goodwill
are recorded when the impairment losses recognised for the assets are no longer
exist or have decreased.
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3.11) Land Held for Development and Development Properties
Land held for development representing lands held for future development are
stated at cost of acquisition including all related costs incurred subsequent to the
acquisition on activities necessary to prepare the land for its intended use.
Such assets are transferred to development properties when significant development
work is to be undertaken and is expected to complete within the normal operating
cycle.

3.12) Investments
Investments in quoted and unquoted shares held on a long-term basis are classified
as available-for-sale investments and the accounting policy is disclosed in Note
3.29(iii) to the financial statements.
3.13) Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of trading
merchandise and consumables comprise of the original cost of purchase plus the
cost of bringing the inventories to location. Cost is determined on the First-In-FirstOut basis.
Cost of unsold completed properties comprises proportionate cost of land and
development expenditure.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs
to be incurred in marketing and selling.
3.14) Deferred and Development Expenditure
Cost incurred by subsidiary companies engaged in hotel and resort management
are deferred to the extent that the directors opinion such expenditure is expected
to generate future economic benefits.
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3.15) Taxation
Income tax on the profit or loss comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax is
the expected amount of income taxes payable in respect of the taxable profit for
the year and is measured using the enacted tax rates relevant to the financial years.
Deferred tax is provided for, using the liability method, on temporary differences
at the statements of financial position date between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. In principle,
deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.
3.16) Discontinued Operation
A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business that represents
a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations that has been
disposed of or is held for sale, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view
to resale.
Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or when the
operation meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale, if earlier. A disposal
group that is to be abandoned may also qualify.
3.17) Statements of Cash Flow
The Group and the Company adopt the indirect method in the preparation of the
statements of cash flow.
Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash on hand, demand deposits and
deposits with licensed bank net off bank overdrafts which are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of change in value.
Cash and bank balances and short-term deposits which are held to maturity are
carried at cost.
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3.18) Currency Translation
i)

Foreign currency transactions

	Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Ringgit Malaysia at rates
ruling at transaction dates. At statements of financial position date, monetary
assets and liabilities resulting from foreign currency transactions are translated
into Ringgit Malaysia at rate of exchange ruling at that date.
	Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are not
retranslated at the end of the reporting date except for those that are measured
at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at
the date that the fair value was determined.
Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit
or loss, except for differences arising on the retranslation of available-for-sale
equity instruments, which are recognised in other comprehensive income.
ii)

Financial statements of foreign operations
In the Group’s financial statements, assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiary
companies are translated into Ringgit Malaysia at rates of exchange ruling at
the statements of financial position date. Revenue and expenses are translated
monthly at the average exchange rates.

	Exchange differences arising from the translation of the assets and liabilities
and results of foreign operations, and the restatement at year end rates of
the opening net investments in foreign subsidiary companies are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve as a component of shareholders’ equity. When a foreign
operation is disposed of, in part or in full, the relevant amount in the foreign
currency translation reserve is transferred to profit or loss as part of the gain
or loss on disposal.
In the Group’s financial statements, when settlement of a monetary item
receivable from or payable to a foreign operation is neither planned nor
likely in the foreseeable future, foreign exchange gains or losses arising from
such a monetary item are considered to form part of a net investment in a
foreign operation and are recognised in other comprehensive income, and are
presented in the foreign currency translation reserve within equity.
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3.18) Currency Translation...cont’d
ii)

Financial statements of foreign operations...cont’d

	The principal closing rates used in the translation of foreign currency amounts
are as follows:
31.03.2011

31.03.2010

RM

RM

1 Singapore Dollar (S$)

2.40

2.33

1 Australia Dollar (AUD)

3.12

2.99

1 United States Dollar (USD)

3.03

3.26

1 Hong Kong Dollar (HKD)

0.39

0.42

1 Thai Baht (THB)

0.10

0.10

3.19) Provision for Liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Group and the Company have a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that the Group and
the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the
amount can be made. Provisions are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation at the statements of financial position
date.

3.20) Revenue Recognition
i)

Travel services and tours
Revenue is recognised upon gross invoiced value on sales of group travel
services and tours, hotel arrangements and air ticketing.
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3.20) Revenue Recognition...cont’d
ii)

Hotel and resort
Revenue from the provision of room, food and beverage sales from hotel and
resort operations are recognised based on the value invoiced to customer
during the year.

iii)

Income from design, artwork and other services
Revenue from the design, artwork and other services are recognised upon
performance of services and customer acceptance, net of sales tax, discounts
and allowances.

iv)

Management fee
Management fee is recognised on an accrual basis.

v)

Dividend income
Dividend income is accounted for in the income statements when the rights to
receive have been established.

vi)

Construction contract
When the outcome of a construction contract can be reliably estimated,
contract revenue and contract costs are recognised as revenue and expenses
respectively by using the stage of completion method. The stage of completion
method is measured by reference to the proportion of contract costs incurred
for work performed to date to the estimated total contract costs. Where the
outcome of a construction contract cannot be reliably estimated, contract
revenue is recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred that is probable
will be recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period
in which they are incurred. When it is probable that the total contract costs
will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately. When the total costs incurred on construction contract
plus recognised profits (less recognised losses) exceeds progress billings,
the balance is classified as amount due from customers on contracts. When
progress billings exceed costs incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised
losses), the balance is classified as amount due to customers on contracts.
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3.21) Employee Benefits
i)

Short term benefits

	Salaries, bonuses, allowances and social security contributions are recognised
as an expense in the year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees of the Group.
ii)

Defined contribution plans

	The Group and the Company make contributions to the Employee Provident
Fund (“EPF”) as required by law in Malaysia. Obligations for contributions to
defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense in the profit or loss as
incurred.

3.22) Plant and Equipment Acquired under Hire Purchase Arrangements
Plant and equipment acquired under hire purchase arrangements are being
capitalised and the corresponding obligations treated as liabilities in the financial
statements.
Finance costs are allocated to the profit or loss to give a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining hire purchase payables.
Plant and equipment acquired under hire purchase arrangements are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.

3.23) Leased Assets
Leased of assets where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the
ownership of the asset, but not the legal ownership, are transferred to the Group
are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised, recording an asset
and liability equal to the present value of the minimum lease payments, including
any guaranteed residual values.
Leased of assets are depreciated on straight-line basis over the term of the lease
estimated useful lives where it is likely that the Group will obtain ownership of the
asset. Lease payment is allocated between the reduction of the lease liability and
the lease interest expense for the year.
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3.23) Leased Assets...cont’d
Leased payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits
remain with the lessor, are charged as an expense in the year in which they are
incurred.

3.24) Share Capital
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets after deducting all of its liabilities. Ordinary shares are classified as equity
instruments. Ordinary shares are recorded at the proceeds received, net of directly
attributable incremental transaction costs. Dividends on ordinary shares are
recognised in equity in the period in which they are declared.
3.25) Financial Guarantee Contract (“FGC”)
FGC is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due.
FGC are recognised initially as a liability at a fair value, net of transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, FGC are recognised as income in profit or loss
over the period of the guarantee. If the debtor fail to make payment relating to FGC
when it is due and the Group, as the issuer, is required to reimburse the holder for
the associated loss, the liability is measured at the higher of the best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date and
the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.
3.26) Derivative Financial Instruments
	The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward exchange currency
contracts to manage certain exposures to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange
rates. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value
on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair
value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.
Any gains and losses arising from changes in fair value on derivatives during the
year are taken directly to the profit or loss.
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3.27) Segment Reporting
For management purposes, the Group is organised into operating segments based
on their products and services which are independently managed by the respective
segment managers responsible for the performance of the respective segments
under their charge. The segment manages report directly to the management of the
Company who regularly review the segment results in order to allocate resources
to the segments and to assess the segment performance. Additional disclosures on
each of this segment are shown in Note 36 to the financial statements.
3.28) Interest-Bearing Borrowings
Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised at the fair value of the consideration
received less direct attributable transaction costs. Borrowing cost directly
attributable to the construction of development properties are capitalised as part
of the cost. After initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
3.29) Financial Assets
Financial assets are recognised in the statement of financial position when, and only
when, the Group and the Company become a party to the contractual provisions of
the financial instrument.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value,
plus, in the case of financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss, directly
attributable transaction costs. The Group and the Company categorise its financial
assets as follows:
i)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss if they are held for trading or are designated as such upon initial
recognition. Financial assets held for trading are derivatives (including
separated embedded derivatives) or financial assets acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the near term.
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3.29) Financial Assets...cont’d
i)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

	Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes
in fair value are recognised in the profit or loss. Net gains or net losses on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss do not include exchange
differences, interest and dividend income. Exchange differences, interest and
dividend income on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised separately in profit or loss as part of other losses or other income.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss could be presented as
current or non-current. A financial asset that is held primarily for trading
purposes are presented as current whereas financial assets that is not held
primarily for trading purposes are presented as current or non-current based
on the settlement date.
ii)

Loans and receivables
Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market are classified as loans and receivables.

	Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are recognised or
impaired, and through the amortisation process.
Loans and receivables are classified as current assets, except for those having
maturity dates later than 12 months after the reporting date which are
classified as non-current.
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3.29) Financial Assets...cont’d
iii)

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are financial assets that are designated as
available for sale or are not classified in any of the above preceding categories.
After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at
fair value. Any gains or losses from changes in fair value of the financial asset
are recognised in other comprehensive income, except that impairment losses,
foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary instruments and interest
calculated using the effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss.
The cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification
adjustment when the financial asset is derecognised. Interest income calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss. Dividends on
an available-for-sale equity instrument are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s and the Company’s right to receive payment is established.
Investments in equity instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are measured at cost less impairment loss.
Available-for-sale financial assets are classified as non-current assets unless
they are expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date.
A financial asset is derecognised where the contractual right to receive
cash flows from the asset has expired. On derecognition of a financial asset
in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.
Regular way of purchases or sales is purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace concerned. All regular way purchases and
sales of financial assets are recognised or derecognised on the trade date i.e.,
the date that the Group and the Company commits to purchase or sell the
asset.
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3.30) Impairment of Financial Assets
	The Group and the Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired.

Trade and other receivables and other financial assets carried at amortised cost
	To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial
assets has been incurred, the Group and the Company considers factors such as
the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and
default or significant delay in payments. For certain categories of financial assets,
such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis based on similar
risk characteristics. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s and the Company’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period and observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.
If any such evidence exists, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. The carrying amount of the
financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of a provision account. When a trade receivable becomes uncollectible, it is
written off against the provision account.
If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the
reversal date. The amount of reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

Unquoted equity instruments carried at cost
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried
at cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the assets’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
assets. Such impairment losses are not reversed in subsequent periods.
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3.30) Impairment of Financial Assets...cont’d

Available-for-sale financial assets
	Significant or prolonged decline in fair value below cost, significant financial
difficulties of the issuer or obligor, and the disappearance of an active trading
market are considerations to determine whether there is objective evidence that
investment securities classified as available-for-sale financial assets are impaired.
If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the
difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and amortisation) and its
current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in profit or loss,
is transferred from equity to profit or loss.
Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments are not reversed in
profit or loss in the subsequent periods. Increase in fair value, if any, subsequent
to impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income. For available-forsale debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed in profit or
loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss in profit or loss.
3.31) Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability.
Financial liabilities, within the scope of FRS 139, are recognised in the statement
of financial position when, and only when, the Group and the Company become a
party to the contractual provisions of the financial instruments. The Group and the
Company categorise its financial liabilities as follows:
i)

Other financial liabilities

	The Group’s and the Company’s other financial liabilities include trade payables
and other payables.
	Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly
attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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3.31) Financial Liabilities...cont’d
i)

Other financial liabilities
Loans and borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities.
For other financial liabilities, gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised, and through the amortisation process.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
extinguished. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the
difference in the respective carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.
3.32) Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgements
The significant accounting estimates and judgements at the statements of financial
position date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.
Useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives after deducting its residual value. The management exercises
their judgement in estimating the useful lives and the residual value of the depreciable
assets. The Group and the Company assesses annually the residual value and the
useful lives of the property, plant and equipment and if the expectation differs from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the depreciation in the period in
which such estimate has been charged.
Allowance for impairment losses
The Group makes allowance for impairment losses based on an assessment of
the recoverability of receivables. Allowances are applied to receivables where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. In assessing the extent of irrecoverable debts, the management has
given due consideration to all pertinent information relating to the ability of the
debtors to settle the debts. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying amounts of the receivables.
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3.32) Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgements...cont’d
Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unutilised business losses, unabsorbed
capital allowances and unutilised investment tax allowances to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the business
losses, capital allowances and investment tax allowances can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. The total carrying amounts of
unabsorbed capital allowances, unutilised business losses and unutilised investment
tax allowances are disclosed in Note 29 to the financial statements.
Impairment of goodwill
The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis.
This requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-generating units
(“CGU”) to which goodwill is allocated. Estimating a value-in-use amount requires
management to make an estimate of the expected future revenue from the CGU.
The carrying amounts of goodwill as at 31 March 2011 were RM20.542 million
(2010: RM41.959 million). Further details on goodwill are disclosed in Note 8 to the
financial statements.
Development properties and construction contracts
			
The Group recognises development properties and construction contracts in the
profit or loss using the stage of completion method. The stage of completion is
determined by reference to the proportion of costs incurred for the work performed
to date to the estimated total costs where the outcome of the projects can be reliably
estimated.
Significant judgement is required in determining the stage of completion, the extent
of costs incurred and the estimated total revenue and costs, as well as recoverability
of the development properties and construction contracts. In making the judgement,
the Group evaluates based on past experience, external economic factors and if
possible relying on the work of specialists.

70

RELIANCE PACIFIC BERHAD

244521 A

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements…cont’d.
4.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES
The operation of the Group is subject to a variety of financial risks. The Group’s overall
financial risk management objective is to ensure that the Group creates value for its
shareholders.
The main areas of financial risk faced by the Group are as follows:
i)

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss attributable to default on obligations by
parties contracting with the Group. The Group’s main exposure to credit risk is
in respect of its trade and other receivables.

	The Group manages the exposures to credit risk by performing credit
evaluation on the major customers and outstanding debts are being monitored
and pursued for full recovery.
ii)
Liquidity and cash flow risk
	The Group actively manages its debt maturity profile, operating cash flows and
availability of funding so as to ensure that all repayment and funding needs
are met.
iii)

Interest rate risk
Any increase in interest rates will increase the burden of the Group in respect
to interest payments of its borrowings. There can be no assurance that the
performance of the Group would remain favourable in the event of adverse
changes in the interest rate. To mitigate the interest rate risk, the management
of the Group constantly monitors the interest rate exposure.

iv)

Foreign currency exchange rate risk
Foreign currency exchange rate risk arises as the Group engages in transactions
that are denominated in foreign currencies. Exchange rate risk arises due to
translation of financial statements of foreign subsidiary companies in the
course of consolidation of financial statements of the Group. These exchange
differences are taken to foreign currency translation reserve through other
comprehensive income instead of to the profit or loss. Material transactions
foreign exchange exposures are hedged, mainly with derivative financial
instruments such as forward exchange currency contracts.

v)

Market price risk
Market price risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate as a result of changes in the market prices. The risk of fluctuation in
market prices is minimised via adherence of qualifying criteria before making
the investments and by continuous monitoring of the performance and medium
term price risk of the investment.
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5.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Valuation/Cost

GROUP
31.03.2011

As at

Additions/

Disposal of

Forex

As at

01/04/2010

Revaluation

Disposals

Subsidiary

fluctuation

Transfer 31/03/2011

RM'000

RM'000

RM'000

RM'000

RM'000

RM'000

RM'000

7,940
73,111

633
-

-

(8,573)
-

-

-

73,111

105,780
6,742
31,903
4,156
13,007
14,533

1,998
451
1,164
1,257
2,015

(1,158)
(680)
(512)

(432)
(1,670)
(3,360)
(3,201)

30
(2)
(12)

(11)
(14)
190

107,346
6,742
32,354
2,511
10,208
13,013

14,823
1,551

495
123

(546)
(12)

(10,965)
(513)

(9)
-

(32)
-

3,766
1,149

113
15,741
1,798

991
14

(193)
(9)

(2,740)
(1,803)

-

(8)
-

113
13,791
-

9,237

23

(4,081)

(1,827)

-

-

3,352

300,435

9,164

(7,191)

(35,084)

7

125

267,456

At Valuation
Freehold office lots
Building
At Cost
Building
Freehold land
Leasehold land
Motor vehicles
Furniture and fittings
Office equipment
Data processing
equipment
Electrical installation
Motor vehicles
workshop
Renovations
Boat
Computer integrated
systems
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5.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)
Accumulated Depreciation

GROUP
31.03.2011

As at

Charge

01/04/2010 for the year

Net Book

Disposal of

Forex

Disposals

Subsidiary

fluctuation

As at

Value

Transfer 31/03/2011 31/03/2011

RM'000

RM'000

RM'000

RM'000

RM'000

RM'000

RM'000

RM'000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

73,111

3,383
1,082
3,525
11,086
9,281

11
364
347
359
543

(1,099)
(613)
(272)

(1,068)
(2,984)
(2,659)

21
(5)
(10)

10
(3)
158

3,394
1,456
1,726
7,840
7,041

103,952
6,742
30,898
785
2,368
5,972

13,699
1,264

451
58

(545)
(12)

(10,590)
(472)

(9)
-

(24)
-

2,982
838

784
311

6,858
1,668

1,231
77

(185)
(8)

(1,644)
(1,737)

-

(4)
-

113
7,535
-

2,166

331

(1,501)

-

-

-

6,256
996

2,356

54,012

3,772

(4,235)

(21,154)

(3)

137

32,529

234,927

At Valuation
Freehold office lots
Building
At Cost
Building
Freehold land
Leasehold land
Motor vehicles
Furniture and fittings
Office equipment
Data processing
equipment
Electrical installation
Motor vehicles
workshop
Renovations
Boat
Computer integrated
systems
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5.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)
Valuation/Cost

GROUP
31.03.2010

As at
01/04/2009
RM'000

Additions
RM'000

Forex
fluctuation
RM'000

Disposals Reclassification
RM'000
RM'000

As at
Transfer 31/03/2010
RM'000
RM'000

(As restated)

(As restated)

At Valuation
Freehold office lots
Building

7,940
73,111

-

-

-

-

-

7,940
73,111

105,583
10,467
31,903
4,681
12,822
13,301

197
151
202
245

(36)
(4)
(19)

(641)
(237)
(222)

1
224
1,228

(3,725)
-

105,780
6,742
31,903
4,156
13,007
14,533

15,239
2,755

250
50

(26)
-

(447)
-

(193)
(1,254)

-

14,823
1,551

113
15,055
1,902

704
-

-

(122)
-

104
(104)

-

113
15,741
1,798

6,584

2,659

-

-

(6)

-

9,237

301,456

4,458

(85)

(1,669)

-

(3,725)

300,435

At Cost
Building
Freehold land
Leasehold land
Motor vehicles
Furniture and fittings
Office equipment
Data processing
equipment
Electrical installation
Motor vehicles
workshop
Renovations
Boat
Computer integrated
systems
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5.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

GROUP
31.03.2010

As at
Charge
01/04/2009 for the year
RM'000
RM'000

Accumulated Depreciation
Forex
fluctuation
Disposals Reclassification
RM'000
RM'000
RM'000

(As restated)

Net Book
As at
Value
31/03/2010 31/03/2010
RM'000
RM'000
(As restated)

(As restated)

At Valuation
Freehold office lots
Building

-

-

-

-

-

-

7,940
73,111

3,381
718
3,789
10,945
8,916

2
364
352
377
515

(38)
(17)
(17)

(579)
(226)
(134)

1
7
1

3,383
1,082
3,525
11,086
9,281

102,397
6,742
30,821
631
1,921
5,252

13,730
1,200

451
65

(25)
-

(447)
-

(10)
(1)

13,699
1,264

1,124
287

5,536
1,582

1,396
85

-

(73)
-

(1)
1

6,858
1,668

113
8,883
130

1,833

331

-

-

2

2,166

7,071

51,630

3,938

(97)

(1,459)

-

54,012

246,423

At Cost
Building
Freehold land
Leasehold land
Motor vehicles
Furniture and fittings
Office equipment
Data processing
equipment
Electrical installation
Motor vehicles
workshop
Renovations
Boat
Computer integrated
systems
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5.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

GROUP
01.04.2009

As at
01/04/2008
RM'000

Valuation/Cost
Acquisition of
Forex
Additions Revaluation
subsidiary fluctuation
RM'000
RM'000
RM'000
RM'000

Write off
RM'000

Disposal
RM'000

As at
Transfer 31/03/2009
RM'000
RM'000

(As restated)

(As restated)

At Valuation
Freehold office lots
Building

1,880
-

-

6,060
73,111

-

-

-

-

-

7,940
73,111

105,422
10,467
31,903
5,644
11,794
12,201

161
93
1,236
1,056

-

224

58
24
(161)

(38)
(8)

(1,114)
(194)
(11)

-

105,583
10,467
31,903
4,681
12,822
13,301

13,440
1,397

549
109

-

1,453
1,254

60
-

(160)
-

(3)
(5)

(100)
-

15,239
2,755

113
9,758
1,778

5,289
54

-

104

8
-

(34)

-

-

113
15,055
1,902

3,320

1,523

-

1,741

-

-

-

-

6,584

209,117

10,070

79,171

4,776

(11)

(240)

(1,327)

(100)

301,456

At Cost
Building
Freehold land
Leasehold land
Motor vehicles
Furniture and fittings
Office equipment
Data processing
equipment
Electrical installation
Motor vehicles
workshop
Renovations
Boat
Computer integrated
systems
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5.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

GROUP
01.04.2009

As at
Charge
01/04/2008 for the year
RM'000
RM'000

Accumulated Depreciation
Acquisition of
Forex
subsidiary fluctuation
RM'000
RM'000

Write off
RM'000

Net Book
As at
Value
Disposals 31/03/2009 31/03/2009
RM'000
RM'000
RM'000

(As restated)

(As restated)

(As restated)

At Valuation
Freehold office lots
Building
At Cost
Building
Freehold land
Leasehold land
Motor vehicles
Furniture and fittings
Office equipment
Data processing
equipment
Electrical installation
Motor vehicles
workshop
Renovations
Boat
Computer integrated
systems

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

7,940
73,111

3,379
366
4,395
10,385
7,319

2
352
464
567
607

179
1,077

44
19
(74)

(35)
(8)

(1,114)
(170)
(5)

3,381
718
3,789
10,945
8,916

102,202
10,467
31,185
892
1,877
4,385

12,507
1,106

474
94

855
-

55
-

(160)
-

(1)
-

13,730
1,200

1,509
1,555

4,310
1,514

1,163
101

59
-

4
-

-

-

(33)

-

5,536
1,582

113
9,519
320

-

399

1,434

-

-

-

1,833

4,751

45,281

4,223

3,604

48

(236)

(1,290)

51,630

249,826
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5.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)
Cost

COMPANY
2011

Renovation
Electrical fittings
Data processing
equipment
Furniture and fittings
Office equipment
Motor vehicles

Accumulated Depreciation
Net Book
As at
As at
Charge
As at
Value
Disposal 31/03/2011 01/04/2010 for the year
Disposal 31/03/2011 31/03/2011
RM'000
RM'000
RM'000
RM'000
RM'000
RM'000
RM'000

As at
01/04/2010
RM'000

Additions
RM'000

539
119

6
2

-

545
121

529
99

2
3

-

531
102

14
19

72
922
217
656

22
138

(342)

94
922
217
452

45
920
204
620

13
1
2
43

(342)

58
921
206
321

36
1
11
131

2,525

168

(342)

2,351

2,417

64

(342)

2,139

212

Cost

COMPANY
2010

As at
01/04/2009
RM'000

Accumulated Depreciation
Net Book
Value
As at
As at
Charge
As at
Additions 31/03/2010 01/04/2009 for the year 31/03/2010 31/03/2010
RM'000
RM'000
RM'000
RM'000
RM'000
RM'000

Renovation
Electrical fittings
Data processing
equipment
Furniture and fittings
Office equipment

539
119

-

539
119

527
96

2
3

529
99

10
20

66
922
217

6
-

72
922
217

34
916
202

11
4
2

45
920
204

27
2
13

Motor vehicles

656

-

656

587

33

620

36

2,519

6

2,525

2,362

55

2,417

108
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a)

Had the revalued freehold office lots and buildings been stated in the financial statements
at cost less accumulated depreciation, the net book value would have been as follows:
GROUP

Freehold office lots
Buildings

2011

2010

RM'000

RM'000

-

1,880

52,168

56,132

The details of independent professional valuation of the buildings are as follows:
Year of Valuation
Description of Property
Basis of Valuation
		
2007
Freehold office lots	Open Market Value
2007
Buildings	Open Market Value

b)

Had the freehold office lots and buildings been stated in the financial statements at
valuation less accumulated depreciation, the net book value would have been as follows:
GROUP

Freehold office lots
Buildings

c)

2011

2010

RM'000

RM'000

-

7,940

121,404

126,282

Included in the Group’s property, plant and equipment is a plant and equipment which has
been acquired by hire purchase and finance lease arrangements amounting to RM0.194
million (2010: RM0.194 million) and RM0.156 million (2010: RM0.156 million) respectively.
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6.

LAND HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES
GROUP

2011

2010

RM'000

RM'000

Leasehold land

17,392

16,496

Freehold land

47,509

2,300

Development cost

11,794

11,274

76,695

30,070

Less: Non-current portion, classified as land held
for development

(76,695) (30,070)

Current portion, classified as development properties

-

-

Included in the above are leasehold land and development cost with carrying amount
of RM26.841 million (2010: RM4.546 million) pledged as security for bank borrowings
granted to the Group.
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7.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
GROUP

2011

2010

RM’000

RM’000

15,819

15,799

-

20

(13,848)

-

1,971

15,819

Beginning of the year

64

24

Additions

40

40

104

64

1,867

15,755

Freehold land and office lots
Cost
Beginning of the year
Additions
Disposal
End of the year
Accumulated depreciation

End of the year
Net carrying amount

Included in the above is investment property with a carrying amount of RMNil million
(2010: RM13.867 million) which is secured for the banking facilities as stated in Note 24
to the financial statements.
As at 31 March 2011, the fair value of the investment properties were estimated at
RM1.867 million (2010: RM25.950 million) based on the directors’ estimation.
	The rental income earned by the Group from its investment properties amounted to
RM0.315 million (2010: RM0.696 million). Direct operating expenses pertaining to the
investment properties of the Group that generated rental income during the year amounted
to RM0.343 million (2010: RM0.574 million).
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8.

GOODWILL ARISING ON CONSOLIDATION
GROUP

2011

2010

RM'000

RM'000

41,959

41,959

(17,811)

-

Winding up of subsidiary companies

(3,606)

-

End of the year

20,542

41,959

Beginning of the year
Disposal of subsidiary companies

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”) identified according to
business segment. The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value in use
and was determined by discounting the future cash flows generated from the continuing
use of the unit and was based on the following key assumptions:
i)	The cash flow projections were approved by the management covering a seven year
period and incorporating a terminal value after the seventh year;
ii)	The subsidiary companies will continue its operation indefinitely;
iii)	The gross profit margin was based on past performance and its expectations of market
development;
iv)	The growth rate used is based on expected growth rates for sales; and
v)	The discount rate used is pretax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
segments.
	There is no impairment loss for the financial year recognised because the value in use
exceeded the carrying amount (including the goodwill allocated) of each CGU at statements
of financial position date.
.
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9.

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES
GROUP

Unquoted shares, at cost
Share of attributable post acquisition

Represented by:
Share of net tangible assets

2011

2010

RM'000

RM'000

322

322

(239)

(210)

83

112

83

112

The details of the associated companies are as follows:
Associate Companies

Group Effective
Country of
Interest
Incorporation
2011
2010
%
%

Principal Activities

Held by RPB Holdings (Overseas) Limited
* Vacation Asia (Thailand) Co. Limited

49

49

Thailand

Travel services and tours

* ^Reliance Holidays (Thailand) Ltd.

49

49

Thailand

Travel services and tours

* Companies not audited by AljeffriDean
^ Company’s financial year end is 31 December
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The Group’s share of revenue and loss of associates is as follows:
2011

2010

RM'000

RM'000

9,783

9,870

(29)

(107)

2011

2010

RM'000

RM'000

Non-current assets

441

441

Current assets

971

971

(2,060)

(2,031)

731

731

83

112

2011

2010

RM'000

RM'000

37,216

59,689

Revenue
Net loss for the year

The Group’s share of assets and liabilities of associates are as follows:

Current liabilities
Current translation differences
Net tangible assets

10.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
COMPANY

Unquoted shares, at cost
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The details of subsidiary companies are as follows:

Name of Companies

a)

Equity
2011
%

Interest
2010
%
Principal Activities

Hotel Division
Incorporated in Malaysia
Fortune Valley Sdn. Bhd.

100

100

RPB Hotel & Resort Management
Sdn. Bhd.

60

60

Hotel and resort management

Gateway Inn Management Sdn. Bhd.

51

51

Hotel and resort management

Avillion Hotel Group Sdn. Bhd.

100

100

Hotel and resort management

Avillion Hotels International Sdn. Bhd.

100

100

Hotel and resort management

Avi Spa Sdn. Bhd.

100

100

Operate and manage spa and
health centre

Avillion Vista Hotel Sdn. Bhd.

100

100

Provision of management services
for hotel suites and service
apartments

Avillion Suite Hotel (PD) Sdn. Bhd.

100

100

Provision of management services
for hotel suites and service
apartments

-

50

RPB Management Services (Overseas)
Sdn. Bhd.

100

100

Dormant

Avillion Hotel (KL) Sdn. Bhd.

100

100

Dormant

Layang-Layang Island Resort
Sdn. Bhd.#
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Name of Companies
b)

c)

Interest
2010
%
Principal Activities

Incorporated in British Virgin Islands
RPB Holdings (Overseas) Limited

100

100

Investment holding

RPB Development (BVI) Limited

100

100

Investment holding

Xplonet Investments Limited

100

100

Investment company in relation to
electronic commerce

*Australian Vacations Pty Ltd

100

100

Travel services and tours

*Reliance Travel Pty Ltd

100

100

Travel services and tours

*Avillion Hotels International (Sydney)
Pty Ltd

-

51

In the process of winding up

*Reliance - OSW (Nominees) Pty Ltd

-

51

In the process of winding up

51

51

Dormant

*RPB Hotels International Services Pty
Ltd

100

100

Dormant

*Avillion Hotels International (Aust)
Pty Ltd

100

100

Dormant

*Reliance Travel (Hong Kong) Limited

100

100

Travel services and tours

*Vacation Asia (HK) Limited

100

100

Travel services and tours

*Vacationland Tours (HK) Limited

100

100

Travel services and tours

Incorporated in Australia

*Reliance - OSW Investment Trust

d)

Equity
2011
%

Incorporated in Hong Kong
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Name of Companies

Equity
2011
%

Interest
2010
%
Principal Activities

Property Division
Incorporated in Malaysia
RPB Development Sdn. Bhd.

100

100

Hotel and resort development

Nesline Sdn. Bhd.

100

100

Investment holding

Unique Gardens Sdn. Bhd.

100

100

Investment holding

80

80

Admiral Marina Berhad

100

100

Operation of a marina club
including berthing facilities

ACD Project Management Services
Sdn. Bhd.

100

100

Provision of project management
services

Genius Field Sdn. Bhd.

100

100

Investment holding

80

80

Property and resort development

Festive Place Sdn. Bhd.

100

100

Development and management of
tourism related projects

Vast Access Sdn. Bhd.

100

100

Investment and property holding

Meridian Haven Sdn. Bhd.

100

-

Investment holding

Avillion Hotel (Malacca) Sdn. Bhd.

100

100

Investment holding

Admiral Cove Development Sdn. Bhd.

Admiral Hill Hotel Sdn. Bhd.
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Name of Companies

a)

Equity
2011
%

Interest
2010
%
Principal Activities

Travel Division
Incorporated in Malaysia
Reliance Shipping & Travel Agencies
Sdn. Berhad

-

100

Travel services, outbound tours
and other related services

Reliance Shipping & Travel Agencies
(Penang) Sdn. Bhd.

-

100

Travel services, outbound tours
and other related services

Reliance Shipping & Travel
Agencies (Johore) Sdn. Bhd.

-

100

Travel services, outbound tours
and other related services

Reliance Shipping & Travel Agencies
(Malacca) Sdn. Bhd.

-

100

Travel services, outbound tours
and other related services

Reliance Shipping & Travel Agencies
(Damansara) Sdn. Bhd

-

100

Travel services, outbound tours
and other related services

Reliance Shipping & Travel Agencies
(Kuching) Sdn. Bhd.

-

100

Travel services, outbound tours
and other related services

Reliance Shipping & Travel Agencies
(BKI) Sdn. Bhd.

-

100

Travel services, outbound tours
and other related services

PYO Travel (MY) Sdn. Bhd.

-

100

Travel services, outbound tours
and other related services

Ideal Malaysian Support Sdn. Bhd.

-

100

Travel franchise business

Reliance Sightseeing Sdn. Bhd.

-

100

Inbound travel services and tours,
coach hire and other related
services

RPB Travel Holdings Sdn. Bhd.

-

100

Investment holding

Vacation Asia International Sdn. Bhd.

-

100

Sale and marketing of hotel
accommodations and
representation of hotel chains
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Name of Companies

Equity
2011
%

Interest
2010
%
Principal Activities

Reliance E-Com Sdn. Bhd.

100

100

Investment company in relation to
electronic commerce

Traveleasi Sdn. Bhd.

100

100

Electronic commerce in relation
to reservation services for airline
tickets and tour packages via the
internet and the development of
related systems and products

-

100

Airline representative, travel
services, tours and other related
services

100

100

Investment company in relation to
electronic commerce

Relianceworld International Sdn. Bhd.

-

100

Dormant

M.I.C.E World Sdn. Bhd.

-

100

Dormant

Maricuti.Com Sdn. Bhd.

-

100

Dormant

Cuticuti.Com Sdn. Bhd.

-

100

Dormant

Reliance Malaysiaworld Sdn. Bhd.

-

100

Dormant

100

100

Dormant

-

100

Dormant

100

100

Dormant

-

100

Dormant

100

100

Dormant

Reliance Travel.Com Services Sdn. Bhd.

Xplonet Capital Sdn. Bhd.

Avillion Hotels Worldwide Sdn. Bhd.
(Formerly known as Ticketworld Sdn. Bhd.)
Reliance Tourworld Sdn. Bhd.
Avi Spa International Sdn. Bhd.
(Formerly known as Reliance Cruiseworld
Sdn. Bhd.)
Reliance Hotelworld Sdn. Bhd.
Reliance Shipping & Travel Agencies
(Perak) Sdn. Bhd.
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Name of Companies

b)

c)

Equity
2011
%

Interest
2010
%
Principal Activities

Reliance Shipping & Travel Agencies
(Kuantan) Sdn. Bhd.

-

100

In the process of winding up

Reliance Shipping & Travel Agencies
(Kedah) Sdn. Bhd.

-

100

In the process of striking off

Reliance Shipping & Travel Agencies
(N.S) Sdn. Bhd.

-

100

Dormant

Reliance Shipping & Travel Agencies
(Miri) Sdn. Bhd.

-

100

In the process of winding up

Heritage Destination Holdings
Sdn. Bhd.

-

100

In the process of winding up

Mirage Travel Holdings Sdn. Bhd.

-

100

In the process of winding up

*Streamline Express Sdn. Bhd.

-

100

In the process of winding up

Relzone Online Sdn. Bhd.

-

100

In the process of winding up

Hotemart On-Line Sdn. Bhd.

-

100

In the process of winding up

*Reliance Sightseeing (Labuan) Limited

-

100

Travel services and tours, coach
hire and other related services

*Hotemart International (Labuan)
Limited

-

100

Travel services and tours, coach
hire and other related services

*Reliance Travel Agencies (S) Pte. Ltd.

100

100

Travel services, outbound tours
and other related services

*Vacation Singapore DMC Pte. Ltd.

100

100

Travel services, rental of vehicles
and other related services

Incorporated in Labuan

Incorporated in Singapore
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Support Companies

Equity
2011
%

Interest
2010
%
Principal Activities

Incorporated in Malaysia
*RPB Capital Holdings Sdn. Bhd.
*READ Advertising Sdn. Bhd.
*OS Resources Sdn. Bhd.
*ANV Production Services Sdn. Bhd.

100
100
100
-

100
100
100
100

Investment holding
Advertising and media services
Office services and administration
In the process of winding up

* Companies not audited by AljeffriDean
# Deemed to be a subsidiary by virtue of Section 5(1)(a)(i) of the Companies Act, 1965

11.

INVESTMENTS
GROUP

2011
Carrying
Market
amount
value
RM'000 RM'000

Available-for-sale financial assets
Unquoted shares, at cost
Quoted shares in Malaysia
Quoted shares in Australia

2010
Carrying
Market
amount
value
RM'000 RM'000

117
489

489

129
1,759
4,217

1,759
5,013

606

489

6,105

6,772

Prior to 01 April 2010, the investments were carried at the lower of cost and market value
12.

DEFERRED AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE
GROUP

2011
RM'000

2010
RM'000

Beginning of the year
Addition
Currency translation differences

943
56
(1)

1,113
132
2

Less: Written off during the year

998
(471)

1,247
(304)

527

943

End of the year
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13.

DEFERRED TAXATION
Analysis for financial reporting purposes
GROUP
2011
2010
RM’000 RM’000

COMPANY
2011
2010
RM’000 RM’000

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

54
(537)

564
(241)

(16)

(16)

Net position

(483)

323

(16)

(16)

Deferred Tax Assets

GROUP
2011
2010
RM’000 RM’000

Beginning of the year
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 29)
End of the year

Deferred Tax Liabilities

COMPANY
2011
2010
RM’000 RM’000

564
(510)

1,732
(1,168)

-

-

54

564

-

-

GROUP
2011
2010
RM’000 RM’000

COMPANY
2011
2010
RM’000 RM’000

Beginning of the year
Disposal of subsidiary companies
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 29)
Currency translation differences

(241)
145
(440)
(1)

(234)
(9)
2

(16)
-

(20)
4
-

End of the year

(537)

(241)

(16)

(16)
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The components and movements of deferred tax assets and liabilities during the financial year
are as follows:
Deferred Tax Assets
- GROUP

Unutilised
investment
tax
allowances
RM'000

Accelerated
capital
allowances
RM'000

Total
RM'000

Beginning of the year
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 29)

5,145
(510)

(4,581)
-

564
(510)

End of the year

4,635

(4,581)

54

Accelerated
capital
allowances
RM'000

Total
RM'000

Beginning of the year
Disposal of subsidiary companies
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 29)
Currency translation differences

(241)
145
(440)
(1)

(241)
145
(440)
(1)

End of the year

(537)

(537)

Accelerated
capital
allowances
RM'000

Total
RM'000

(16)

(16)

Deferred Tax Liabilities
- GROUP

Deferred Tax Liabilities
- COMPANY

Beginning/End of the year
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14.

INVENTORIES
GROUP
At cost:
Promotional items
Trading merchandise
Unsold completed properties

2011
RM'000

2010
RM'000

50
729
22,027

639
556
21,762

22,806

22,957

Included in unsold completed properties are 102 units (2010: 108 units) of properties
which have been pledged to secure against the banking facilities.

15.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
GROUP
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000
Trade receivables
Less : Allowance for impairment losses

Other receivables
Less : Allowance for impairment losses

Deposits and prepayments

94

COMPANY
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000

46,428
(529)

181,312
(517)

-

-

45,899

180,795

-

-

102,543
(583)

41,654
(583)

79,023
-

5,263
-

101,960

41,071

79,023

5,263

233

73

233

73

148,092

221,939

79,256

5,336
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15.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES...cont’d
a)	The normal trade credit term of trade receivables range from 30 to 90 days (2010: 30
to 90 days).
b)

Included in the Group’s and the Company’s other receivables are consideration to be
received from the disposal of certain subsidiary companies amounting to RM20.893
million and RM20.772 million respectively.

c)

As at 31 March 2011, the Group’s trade receivables ageing are as follows:

RM'000
Neither past due nor impaired
01 to 30 days past due not impaired
31 to 60 days past due not impaired
61 to 90 days past due not impaired
More than 90 days past due but not impaired

2,927
596
2,242
2,147
37,987

Impaired

45,899
529
46,428

Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to customers for
whom there were no default.
None of the Group’s trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have
been renegotiated during the financial year.

95

RELIANCE PACIFIC BERHAD

244521 A

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements…cont’d.
15.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES...cont’d
Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired
	Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to where there is no
expectation of default. The directors are of the opinion that no provision for impairment
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in
the credit quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
Trade receivables that is impaired
	The Group’s trade receivables that are impaired as at 31 March 2011 and the movement
of the allowance accounts used to record the impairment are as follows:

RM'000
Trade receivables - nominal amounts
Less : Allowance for impairment losses

529
(529)
-

End of the year

Movement in allowance for impairment losses are as follows:

RM'000
Beginning of the year
Addition for impairment losses

517
12

End of the year

529
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16.

AMOUNT DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES
COMPANY
The amount due from subsidiaries is unsecured and is repayable on demand. Interest rate
is at the ranged of 1.50% to 7.50% (2010: 1.50% to 5.55%) per annum is charged on amount
owing of RM152.628 million (2010: RM173.763 million) by certain subsidiaries. All other
amounts are interest free

17.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
GROUP
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000
Trade payables
Other payables
Tour deposit received

COMPANY
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000

21,387
15,805

25,398
6,100

2,732

1,703

5,729

3,002

-

-

42,921

34,500

2,732

1,703

The normal trade credit term granted to the Group range from 30 to 90 days (2010: 30 to
90 days).
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18.

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Bank Overdraft
- Secured
- Unsecured
Revolving Credit
- Secured
- Unsecured
Term Loan (secured) *
- Current portion (Note 24)

GROUP
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000

COMPANY
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000

20,397
18,092

23,591
23,972

13,773
4,967

15,916
5,818

38,489

47,563

18,740

21,734

5,000
3,500

16,159
9,500

5,000
-

5,000
-

8,500

25,659

5,000

5,000

11,927

18,756

6,250

1,250

58,916

91,978

29,990

27,984

GROUP
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000

Secured by :

COMPANY
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000

i) A third party first legal charge
over the certain property, plant
and equipment of subsidiary
companies

67,100

44,189

-

-

ii) Corporate guarantee by the Company

60,848

88,371

-

-

iii) Joint and several guarantee by
the subsidiary companies

59,000

10,000

59,000

10,000

*Details of securities of term loans are disclosed in Note 24 to the financial statements.
The effective interest rate during the financial year in the ranged between 4.72% to 8.05%
(2010: 4.72% to 7.55%) per annum.
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19.

HIRE PURCHASE AND FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES
GROUP
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000
Minimum payments
- not later than 1 year
- later than 1 year and not later than 5 years

COMPANY
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000

63
196

40
-

24
70

-

259

40

94

-

Future finance charges on hire purchase and
finance lease payables

(33)

(6)

(12)

-

Present value of hire purchase and finance
lease payables

226

34

82

-

Present value of hire purchase and finance
lease payables
- not later than 1 year
- later than 1 year and not later than 5 years

55
171

34
-

20
62

-

226

34

82

-

Effective interest rate of the Group and of the Company is 5.50% and 5.50% respectively.
20.

SHARE CAPITAL
GROUP AND COMPANY

2011
RM'000

2010
RM'000

Authorised

500,000

500,000

Issued and fully paid-up

171,710

171,710

Ordinary shares of RM0.20 each
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21.

RESERVES

Non-distributable

Share premium reserve
Share buy-back reserve (Note a)
Foreign currency translation reserve
Available-for-sale reserve
Revaluation reserve (Note b)

Distributable

Accumulated profit (Note c)

GROUP
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000

COMPANY
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000

19,911
8,930
(4,523)
465
73,111

19,911
8,930
(3,150)
79,171

19,911
8,930
-

19,911
8,930
-

97,894

104,862

28,841

28,841

72,646

63,674

16,298

468

170,540

168,536

45,139

29,309

a)	The share buy-back reserve arose pursuant to the Company’s purchase of its own
shares.
b)	The revaluation reserve relates to the revaluation on the Group’s freehold office lots
and buildings.
c)	Subject to agreement with the Inland Revenue Board, the Company has sufficient
Section 108 tax credit and exempt income to frank its entire accumulated profit at 31
March 2011 if paid out as dividends. Effective 01 January 2008, the Company is given
the option to make an irrevocable election to move to a single tier system or continue
to use its tax credit under Section 108 of the Income Tax Act, 1967 for the purpose of
dividend distribution. The Company has made this election.
22.

MINORITY INTEREST
The minority interest reflects a net debit balance due to losses borne by a minority
corporate shareholder.

23.

ADVANCE FROM JOINT VENTURE SHAREHOLDER
The advance is in the nature of a long term advance of that minority shareholder’s
proportionate contribution pertaining to a subsidiary’s hotel development project in
Australia and it is unsecured and bears no interest.
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24.

TERM LOANS

Total term loans
Less:
Payable within 12 months
(Short term borrowings - Note 18)
Payable after 12 months

GROUP
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000

COMPANY
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000

78,385

76,714

56,250

45,000

(11,927) (18,756)

(6,250)

(1,250)

50,000

43,750

66,458

57,958

The Company has been granted with term loans as follows:
i)

Fixed rate term loan of RM40 million from financial institutions for a period of 5 years
on an unsecured basis. The purpose of the term loan was for the refinancing of the CLO
and for general working capital of the Group. The repayment is in one lump sum after
5 years of the first drawn down. The interest rate charged is fixed at 5.70% per annum.
The term loan is secured by joint and several guarantee by subsidiary companies.

ii)	Term loan of RM5 million from financial institutions for a period of 5 years. The purpose
of the term loan as an advances to the existing subsidiary company to part finance
the purchase of the issued and fully paid up ordinary shares of the new subsidiary
companies. The repayment is by 8 equal semi-annual installments of RM0.625
million each. The first installment will be commenced 18 months from the date of
first drawdown. The interest rate charged is at 1.15% per annum above the Bank’s
Cost of Funds. The term loan is secured by joint and several guarantee by subsidiary
companies and third party first legal charge over a vacant land.
iii)	Term loan of RM15 million from financial institution for a period of 3 years. The
purpose of this term loan is to partially refinance the Company’s existing term loan
which forms part of the CLO. The repayment is by 12 equal quarterly repayments of
RM1.250 million, or redemption sum of RM700 per square foot on sold units of Marina
View hotels suites. The interest rate charged is at 2.50% per annum above the Bank’s
Cost of Funds. The term loan is secured over 70 units of hotel suites in Marina View
and corporate guarantee by the subsidiary company.
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The subsidiary companies have been granted with term loans as follows:
i)	The term loan of RM10 million is obtained from a financial institution for redemption
of existing term loan outstanding for the discharge of the proposed collateral and
working capital. The term loan is repayable by 120 months commencing from the date
of the first drawdown. The effective interest rate is ranging from 5.55% to 5.80% per
annum.
	The term loan is secured by first party first legal charge over a double storey detached
office building and corporate guarantee by the Company.
	The term loan has been fully settled during the current financial year end.
ii)	The term loan of RM18 million from a financial institution for a period of 18 months.
The purpose of the term loan is to part finance the interior works of Marina Vista Suite
Hotel at Port Dickson. The effective interest rate is ranging from 5.50% to 5.80% per
annum.
	The term loan is secured by 70 (2010: 73) unsold units of Marina View Waterfront
Suite Hotel.
	The term loan has been fully settled during the current financial year end.
iii)	The term loan of RM20 million from a financial institution for a period of 7 years.
The purpose of the term loan is to finance construction/upgrading works at Avillion
Port Dickson Resort. The repayment is by 26 equal quarterly installments of RM0.769
million each commencing in the 7th month from the date of first drawdown. The
effective interest rate is ranging from 6.80% to 7.05% per annum.
	The term loan is secured by third party, first legal charge over a double storey clubhouse
and Marina basin and corporate guarantee by the Company.
iv)	The term loan of RM13 million from a financial institution for a period of 5 years. The
purpose of the term loan is to part finance or part reimbursement of the acquisition of
a piece of land in Kuala Lumpur. The repayment is by 60 equal installment of RM0.217
million each commencing from the first day immediately after the date of drawdown.
The interest rate charged is at 1.50% per annum above the Bank’s Cost of Funds.
	The term loan is secured by severally and jointly guarantee by the Company and
related company
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25.

COLLATERISED LOAN OBLIGATION (CLO)

Payable within 12 months
Payable after 12 months

GROUP
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000

COMPANY
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000

40,000
-

45,000
40,000

40,000
-

45,000
40,000

40,000

85,000

40,000

85,000

The Company has been granted a Collaterised Loan Obligation (“CLO”) from financial
institutions for Unsecured Fixed Rate Term Loan facility of up to RM85 million. The
purposes of the loan are to raise funds to primarily refinance the bank borrowings as well
as for working capital requirements. The repayment is in one lump sum after 5 years of
the first drawdown. The effective interest rate is ranging from 7.13% to 7.60% per annum.
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26.

ANALYSIS OF GROUP’S REVENUE, COST OF SALES AND RESULT
Revenue of the Company represents gross dividend income, management fees and
investment income. Revenue of the Group represents the gross invoiced value of tour
operations, less discounts and returns and agency commission; income from other travel
related services; proportionate sale value of development properties completed during
the year; progress billings from design and artwork services rendered; fees from business
computing solutions rendered and income from the operation of a marina club.
The revenue and cost of sales incurred in relation to revenue are as follows:
i)

Revenue and cost of sales

Type of activity

Revenue Cost of sales
RM’000

RM’000

454,613

415,204

7,276

2,212

42,477

12,706

504,366

430,122

Composition of cost of sales

GROUP
2011
Continuing operations:
Tours operations and other
travel related services

Properties

Hotel and resort management
Total from continuing
operations
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Purchases of tours,
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maintenance and upkeep of
vehicles, and other related
expenses
Development cost of
properties and discount
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Cost of material purchased
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Type of activity

Revenue Cost of sales
RM’000

RM’000

363,554

330,520

Properties

51,070

45,451

Hotel and resort management

42,655

6,501

457,279

382,472

Composition of cost of sales

GROUP
2010
Continuing operations:
Tours operations and other
travel related services

Total from continuing
operations
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Purchases of tours,
tickets, hire of coach, fuel,
maintenance and upkeep of
vehicles, and other related
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Development cost of
properties and discount
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ii)	Summary of Group’s results
2011
Continuing
operations
RM'000

Discontinued
operation
(Note 40)
RM'000

Total
RM'000

504,366

-

504,366

Segment result
Shares of results of associates

1,355
(29)

(131)
-

1,224
(29)

Profit/(Loss) before winding up and disposal
of subsidiary companies

1,326

(131)

1,195

Net effect on winding up subsidiary
companies
Gain on disposal of subsidiary companies

1,175

-

1,175

746

-

746

Profit/(Loss) before taxation
Taxation

3,247
(2,430)

(131)
-

3,116
(2,430)

Net profit/(loss) for the year

817

(131)

686

457,279

-

457,279

Segment result
Allowance for diminution in value of
investment
Shares of results of associates

3,647
(608)

(228)
-

3,419
(608)

(107)

-

(107)

Profit/(Loss) before taxation

2,932

(228)

2,704

(2,236)

-

(2,236)

(228)

468

Revenue

2010
Revenue

Taxation
Net profit/(loss) for the year

696
106

-
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27.

PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS
Profit/(loss) from operations is arrived at:

GROUP
2011
2010
RM'000
RM'000

COMPANY
2011
2010
RM'000
RM'000

(As restated)

After charging:
Directors’ remuneration:
- short term benefits
- EPF contributions
Audit fees
- current year
- under provision in previous year
Rental of office premises
Operating lease rental
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
Depreciation of investment properties
Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment
Property, plant and equipment written off
Revaluation deficit
Share of result of associates
Allowance for diminution in value of investment
Deferred expenditure written off
Allowance for impairment losses
Written off due to winding up subsidiaries
Staff costs - Short term benefits
- EPF contributions
And crediting:
Management fees from subsidiary companies
Rental income
Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
Gain on disposal of investment properties
Interest income
Realised gain on foreign exchange
Fair value changes on available-for-sale
investment
Gross dividend income
107

3,934
370

3,595
317

711
67

645
57

356
244
3,545
75

366
5
3,766
75

13
176
-

13
174
-

3,772
40

3,938
40

66
-

55
-

128
219
225
29
471
12
20,439
1,863

113
107
608
304
22
18,635
1,796

8,771
1,296
150

1,200
133

1,746
198

826
-

120
140

1,980
-

3,257
8,613
63
6
1,508

136
184
-

-

152
-

-

-

7,000

7,241
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28.

FINANCE COSTS
GROUP
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000

Term loan interest
Overdraft interest
Revolving credit interest
Collaterised Loan Obligation ("CLO") interest
Amortisation - CLO upfront fee
Hire purchase interest

29.

COMPANY
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000

4,352
2,436
1,540
4,633
289
203

3,192
2,797
1,574
6,229
410
13

2,883
984
254
4,633
289
3

2,480
1,259
269
6,229
410
-

13,453

14,215

9,046

10,647

TAXATION
GROUP
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000

COMPANY
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000

Tax expense for the year :
Malaysian income tax
Foreign tax

865
195

705
196

-

-

1,060

901

-

-

Under provision in prior years :
Malaysian income tax

420

158

349

55

Deferred tax relating to the origination and
reversal of temporary differences (Note 13)

950

1,177

-

(4)

2,430

2,236

349

51

Total tax expense
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Malaysian income tax is calculated at the Malaysian statutory income tax rate of 25%
(2010: 25%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation for other jurisdictions
is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit/(loss) before taxation at the
statutory income tax rate to income tax expense at the effective income tax rate of the
Group and of the Company is as follow:
GROUP
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000
Profit from continuing operation
Loss from discontinued operation
Taxation at Malaysian
statutory income tax rate
- at 25% (2010: 25%)
Tax effect on different tax rate in
another country
Tax effect on expenses that are not
deductible for tax purposes
Income not subject to tax
Utilisation of previously unabsorbed
capital allowances and unutilised business
losses and investment tax allowances
Deferred tax assets not recognised
Under provision in prior year
Tax expenses for the year
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COMPANY
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000

3,247
(131)

2,932
(228)

16,179
-

125
-

812

676

4,045

31

(66)

(131)

-

-

4,883
(2,988)

3,141
(863)

3,070
(7,115)

1,775
(1,810)

(630)
420

(1,891)
1,146
158

349

55

2,430

2,236

349

51
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Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:

Unabsorbed capital allowances
Unutilised business losses

2011
RM'000

2010
RM'000

229
22,512

56
174,571

22,741

174,627

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these items due to uncertainty
of its recoverability.
As at 31 March 2011, the Group has unutilised investment tax allowances amounting to
RM18.212 million (2010: RM20.685 million).
The above unabsorbed capital allowances, unutilised business losses and investment tax
allowances are available indefinitely for offset against future taxable profits, subject to
the approval of the Inland Revenue Board.
30.

EARNINGS/(LOSSES) PER SHARE
The basic earnings/(losses) per share has been calculated based on the profit after tax
and minority interest of RM1.528 million (2010: loss after tax and minority interest of
RM0.408 million) divided by the weighted average number of 858.552 million (2010:
858.552 million) ordinary shares of RM0.20 each.
The earnings/(losses) per share for the continuing and discontinued operation have been
calculated based on the profit from continuing operations attributable to shareholders of
RM1.595 million (2010: loss of RM0.292 million) and the loss from discontinued operation
attributable to shareholders of RM0.067 million (2010: RM0.116 million) respectively.
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31.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
As disclosed in Note 38 to the financial statements, the Company had entered into a
conditional share sale agreement with Alpha Vantage Sdn. Bhd. (formerly known as
Superlative Achievement Sdn Bhd) for the disposal of its entire equity interest in certain
subsidiaries of the travel division for an aggregate cash consideration of RM52.233 million.
The said disposal has been completed on 31 March 2011.
The disposal had the following effects on the financial position of the Group as at the end
of the financial year ended:
2011
RM’000
Non-current assets
Other current assets
Fixed and call deposits
Cash and bank balances
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

17,829
185,672
623
2,785
(169,780)
(107)

Net assets disposed
Attributable goodwill
Minority interest
Transfer from foreign currency translation reserve

37,022
17,811
(89)
(3,257)

Proceed from disposal

51,487
52,233

Gain on disposal of subsidiary companies
Disposal proceeds settled by:
Cash
Deferred payment as per share sale agreement (Note 15)

746
52,233
(20,893)
31,340

Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiary companies:
Cash consideration
Fixed and call deposits of subsidiaries disposed
Cash and bank balances of subsidiaries disposed

31,340
(623)
(2,785)
27,932

111

RELIANCE PACIFIC BERHAD

244521 A

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements…cont’d.
The effects of the disposal on the financial results of the Group were as follows:
2011
RM’000
Revenue
Cost of sales

283,086
(256,035)

Gross profit
Other operating income
Administrative expenses

32.

27,051
1,273
(28,721)

Loss from operations
Finance costs

(397)
(2,103)

Loss before taxation
Taxation

(2,500)
(603)

Net loss for the year

(3,103)

PURCHASE OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
During the financial year, the Group and the Company made the following cash payment
to purchase property, plant and equipment:
GROUP
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000
Purchase of property, plant and
equipment
Financed by hire purchase
arrangements
Payment to purchase
property, plant and equipment
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COMPANY
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000

8,531

4,458

168

6

(605)

-

(100)

-

7,926

4,458

68

6
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33.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of the following:

Fixed and call deposits
Cash and bank balances
Bank overdrafts

GROUP
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000

COMPANY
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000

15,762
22,037
35,037
11,028
(38,489) (47,563)

11,155
11,155
28,328
111
(18,740) (21,734)

12,310 (14,498)

20,743 (10,468)

Included in the amount is an Authorised Depository with the financial institution pledged
as security amounting to RM11.155 million (2010: RM11.155 million).
34.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2011, the Group and the Company have contingent liabilities as follows:
GROUP
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000
a)

b)
c)

COMPANY
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000

Corporate guarantees given by
the Company to banks and
suppliers for credit facilities
granted to subsidiary companies

-

-

106,331

111,999

Corporate guarantees given by
subsidiary companies to bank

-

-

59,000

60,000

1,958

12,891

80

80

1,958

12,891

165,411

172,079

Secured bank guarantees issued
to third parties in the ordinary
course of business
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35.

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
GROUP

2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

49
17
14

96
47
14

266
704

266
865

5,850
477
1,834
109
203

2,427
742
27
1,835
145
-

35
-

160
72
5
32

a) Services rendered to the companies controlled
by certain directors
World Net Services Sdn Bhd (Incorporated in Malaysia)
Reliance Computer Centre Sdn Bhd (Incorporated in Malaysia)
Relvest Management Services Sdn Bhd (Incorporated in Malaysia)
b) Services rendered by the companies controlled
by certain directors
Relvest Management Services Sdn Bhd (Incorporated in Malaysia)
World Net Services Sdn Bhd (Incorporated in Malaysia)
c) Purchases from the company controlled by certain directors
Japan Insight Travel Inc. (Incorporated in Japan)
Reliance Computer Centre Sdn Bhd (Incorporated in Malaysia)
Reliance College Sdn Bhd (Incorporated in Malaysia)
Vacation Europa Ltd (Incorporated in UK)
Reliance Travel (Thailand) Ltd (Incorporated in Thailand)
Reliance Tours (UK) Ltd (Incorporated in UK)
d) Sales to the company controlled by certain directors
Reliance Tours (UK) Limited (Incorporated in UK)
Reliance Computer Centre Sdn Bhd (Incorporated in Malaysia)
World Net Services Sdn Bhd (Incorporated in Malaysia)
Reliance College Sdn Bhd (Incorporated in Malaysia)

The transactions have been entered into the normal course of business at terms mutually
agreed between the parties.
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e) Compensation of Key Management Personnel
GROUP
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000
Short term benefits
EPF contributions

COMPANY
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000

3,247
356

2,639
293

720
80

619
67

3,603

2,932

800

686

Key management personnel are defined as those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group and the
Company either directly or indirectly.
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36.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
31 March 2011

Travel
Malaysia Overseas
RM'000
RM'000
Revenue

Property
RM'000

Hotel Development
Malaysia Overseas
RM'000
RM'000

Group
Management
and Others
RM'000

Consolidated
RM'000

297,751

156,863

7,276

42,476

-

-

504,366

(3,513)

1,185

7,061

3,785

(25)

(7,138)

1,355
(29)

Result
Segment result
Share of results of associates
Profit from continuing operations
before winding up and disposal
of subsidiary companies

1,326

Net effect on winding up
subsidiary companies

1,175

Gain on disposal of subsidiary
companies

746

Profit before taxation
Taxation

3,247
(2,430)

Net profit from continuing
operations

817

Net loss from discontinued
operation (Note 40)

(131)

Net profit for the year
Minority interest

686
842

Profit attributable to equity
holder of the parent
Assets employed
- Continuing operations

1,528
21,710

48,648

152,787
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36.

SEGMENT INFORMATION…(Cont’d)
31 March 2010

Travel
Malaysia Overseas
RM’000
RM’000
Revenue

Property
RM’000

Hotel Development
Malaysia Overseas
RM’000
RM’000

Group
Management
and Others
RM’000

Consolidated
RM’000

219,755

143,799

51,070

42,655

-

-

457,279

(845)

1,406

2,724

7,493

(21)

(7,110)

3,647

Result
Segment result
Provision for diminution
in value of investment

(608)

Share of results of
associates

(107)

Profit from continuing
operations before taxation

2,932

Taxation

(2,236)

Net profit from continuing
operations

696

Net loss from
discontinued operation
(Note 40)

(228)

Net profit for the year

468

Minority interest

(876)

Loss attributable to equity
holder of the parent

(408)

Assets employed
- Continuing operations
- Discontinued operation

157,484
-

35,036
-

184,673
-

177,940
-

4,557
303

59,658
-

619,348
303

157,484

35,036

184,673

177,940

4,860

59,658

619,651
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37.

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, payables and short term
borrowings including hire purchase payables approximate their fair values due to the
relatively short term nature of these financial instruments.
The fair values of investment properties and other investments in quoted shares are
disclosed in Note 7 and 11 to the financial statements.
The fair values of all other financial assets and liabilities of the Group and of the Company
as at 31 March 2011 are not materially different from their carrying amounts.

38.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS
a)	On 31 March 2011, Meridian Haven Sdn Bhd, the wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company has entered into a share sale agreement with Mohamad Zawani Bin Abd.
Wahab and Azizul Nizam Bin Bidin for the purchase of Golden Envoy (M) Sdn Bhd for
a total cash consideration of RM13 million. The acquisition is not completed during
the current financial year.
b)	On 22 March 2011, the Company had announced that the following dormant subsidiary
companies have been placed under members’ voluntary winding up:i)
ii)

Avillion Hotels International (Sydney) Pty Ltd; and
Reliance-OSW (Nominees) Pty Ltd.

c)	On 24 January 2011, the Company had entered into a conditional share sale agreement
with Alpha Vantage Sdn. Bhd. (formerly known as Superlative Achievement Sdn Bhd) for
the disposal of its entire equity interest in certain subsidiaries of the travel division
for an aggregate cash consideration of RM52.233 million. The said disposal has been
completed on 31 March 2011.
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d)	On 12 November 2010, the Company had announced that the following dormant
subsidiary companies have been placed under members’ voluntary winding up:i)
Heritage Destination Holdings Sdn Bhd;
ii) Mirage Travel Holdings Sdn Bhd;
iii)	Streamline Express Sdn Bhd;
iv) ANV Production Services Sdn Bhd;
v) Reliance Shipping & Travel Agencies (Kuantan) Sdn Bhd;
vi) Reliance Shipping & Travel Agencies (Miri) Sdn Bhd;
vii) Relzone Online Sdn Bhd; and
viii) Hotemart On-Line Sdn Bhd.
e)	On 23 August 2010, RPB Development Sdn Bhd, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, purchased a company name Meridian Haven Sdn Bhd for a total
consideration of RM2. The company has an authorised and paid up ordinary share
capital of RM100,000 and RM2 respectively.
f)	On 10 June 2010, Nesline Sdn Bhd a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company has
entered into Sale and Purchase Agreement with Andaman Land Sdn Bhd to sell the
following property for a total consideration of RM26 Million:i)
ii)

Geran 10923, Lot 256, Seksyen 89A, Bandar Kuala Lumpur, Daerah Kuala Lumpur,
Wilayah Persekutuan Kuala Lumpur; and
H.S.(D) 100252, PT 20, Seksyen 89A, Bandar Kuala Lumpur, Daerah Kuala Lumpur,
Wilayah Persekutuan Kuala Lumpur together with a two (2) storey office building
erected thereon bearing postal address of No. 388, Jalan Tun Razak, 50400 Kuala
Lumpur.

	The above disposal has been completed on 25 October 2010.
39.

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
On 20 May 2011, RPB Development Sdn Bhd, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
purchased a company named Vector Junction Sdn Bhd for a total consideration of RM2. The
company has an authorised and paid up share capital of RM100,000 and RM2 respectively.
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40.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION
The effects on the financial results of the Group for the financial year ended 31 March
2011 are as follows:
2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

-

-

Administrative expenses

(131)

(228)

Loss from operations

(131)

(228)

-

-

(131)

(228)

-

-

(131)

(228)

2011
RM'000

2010
RM'000

Net cash used in operating activities

(1)

(1)

Net cash used in discontinued operation

(1)

(1)

Other operating income

Finance cost
Loss from discontinued operation before taxation
Taxation
Net loss from discontinued operation

The cash flow attributable to the discontinued operation is as follows:
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41.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Certain comparative figures have been restated due to the adoption of FRS 117. Set out
below is the financial effect arising from the adoption of FRS 117:

As
previously
reported
RM

GROUP

Effect of
changes in
accounting
policies As restarted
RM
RM

Effect on Statements of Financial Position
As at 01 April 2009
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land lease payments

218,641
31,185

31,185
(31,185)

249,826
-

215,602
30,821

30,821
(30,821)

246,423
-

3,574
364

364
(364)

3,938
-

As at 31 March 2010
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land lease payments

Effect on Statements of Cash Flow
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments

42.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group’s and the Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group and the Company may return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. Consistent with others in the industry, the Group and
the Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including
current and non-current borrowings as shown in the statement of financial position) less
cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the statement
of financial position plus net debt.
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The gearing ratios as at 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010 were as follow:

Bank overdraft
Revolving credit
Collaterised loan obligation (CLO)
Hire purchase and finance lease payables
Term loans

COMPANY
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000

38,489
8,500
40,000
226
78,385

18,740
5,000
40,000
82
56,250

47,563
25,659
85,000
34
76,714

21,734
5,000
85,000
45,000

Less : Cash and cash equivalents

165,600 234,970
(50,799) (33,065)

120,072 156,734
(39,483) (11,266)

Net debt
Total equity

114,801
347,741

201,905
339,596

80,589
216,849

145,468
201,019

Total capital

462,542

541,501

297,438

346,487

25

37

27

42

Gearing ratio (%)

43.

GROUP
2011
2010
RM'000 RM'000

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION – BREAKDOWN OF ACCUMULATED PROFIT INTO REALISED
AND UNREALISED
The breakdown of the accumulated profit of the Group and of the Company as at 31 March
2011 into realised and unrealised is presented in accordance with the directive issued
by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad dated 25 March 2010 and prepared in accordance
with Guideline on Special Matter No.1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or
Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing
Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.
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Total accumulated profit/(losses) of the Company and
its subsidiary companies
- Realised
- Unrealised

Total share of accumulated profit/(losses) from
associate companies
- Realised
- Unrealised

Total accumulated profit as per financial statements

44.

GROUP
RM’000

COMPANY
RM’000

73,368
(483)

16,314
(16)

72,885

16,298

(239)
-

-

(239)

-

72,646

16,298

NET EFFECT ON WINDING UP SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
As disclosed in Note 38 to the financial statements, the Company had announced certain
subsidiary companies which have been placed under members’ voluntary winding up. The
winding up had the following effects on the financial position of the Group as at the end of
the financial year ended:
2011
RM’000
Other current assets
Cash and bank balances
Current liabilities

35,624
333
(45,604)

Net liabilities
Attributable goodwill
Minority interest
Transfer from foreign currency translation reserve

(9,647)
3,606
6,694
(1,828)

Net effect on winding up subsidiary companies

(1,175)
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Land Area
(sq.ft)

Net Book
Value
(RM’000)

Revaluation Date/
Date of
Acquisition

-

1,076,064

72,611

02.12.1993

14 years

-

15,507

13 years

-

480,505

135,774

04.01.2008
(Date of Revaluation)

-

-

1,077,272

9,398

18.05.2004

Freehold

-

-

124,431

5,814

04.01.2008

Vacant land for
development

Leasehold
(99 years
expiry - 2102)

-

-

475,349

9,141

06.06.2002

H.S.(D) 18698 PT 3412,
Mukim Si Rusa,
Daerah Port Dickson, Negeri Sembilan.

Vacant land for
development

Leasehold
(99 years
expiry – 2096)

-

-

226,442

4,406

18.05.2004

8

H.S (D) 1/96, P.T. No 703,
Mukim Kedawang,
District of Langkawi, Kedah

Vacant land

Freehold

-

-

49,016
sq. m

13,010

27.10.2010

9

H.S (D) 105108, PT 135,
Seksyen 71, Bandar Kuala Lumpur
Daerah Kuala Lumpur.
Negeri Wilayah Persekutuan KL.

Vacant land

Freehold

-

-

2,560
sq. m

H.S (D) 105109, PT 135,
Seksyen 71, Bandar Kuala Lumpur
Daerah Kuala Lumpur
Negeri Wilayah Persekutuan KL.

Vacant land

Freehold

-

-

2,884
sq. m

17,236

06.09.2010

Geran Mukim 814, No. Lot 2696,
Mukim Setapak, Daerah Kuala Lumpur
Negeri Wilayah Persekutuan KL.

Vacant land

Freehold

-

-

66,731

Geran Mukim 815, No. Lot 2694,
Mukim Setapak, Daerah Kuala Lumpur
Negeri Wilayah Persekutuan KL.

Vacant land

Freehold

-

-

68,033

Geran Mukim 816, No. Lot 2695,
Mukim Setapak, Daerah Kuala Lumpur
Negeri Wilayah Persekutuan KL

Vacant land

Freehold

-

-

61,241

14,963

31.01.2011

Geran Mukim 817, No. Lot 2697,
Mukim Setapak, Daerah Kuala Lumpur
Negeri Wilayah Persekutuan KL

Vacant land

Freehold

-

-

65,331

Geran Mukim 818, No. Lot 2698,
Mukim Setapak, Daerah Kuala Lumpur
Negeri Wilayah Persekutuan KL

Vacant land

Freehold

-

-

63,943

No

Location

Description/
Existing Use

Tenure

Age of
Building

1

H.S.(D) 13641, 13643 and 19662,
5th Mile, Mukim Si Rusa,
Daerah Port Dickson, Negeri Sembilan.

Admiral Cove Premier
Integrated Marina
Resort

Leasehold
(99 years
expiry - 2094)

13 years

2

C.T. 5972, Lot 1273,
3rd Mile Mukim Si Rusa,
Daerah Port Dickson, Negeri Sembilan.

Freehold

3

H.S. (D) 12303, 15353 and 18191,
3rd Mile, Mukim Si Rusa,
Daerah Port Dickson, Negeri Sembilan.

Avillion Resort Port
Dickson consists of
villas, water chalets,
meeting rooms, spa,
F&B outlets and other
facilities

Leasehold
(99 years
expiry - 2095)

4

H.S.(D) 18699 PT 3413,
Mukim Si Rusa,
Daerah Port Dickson, Negeri Sembilan.

Vacant land for
development

Leasehold
(99 years
expiry - 2096)

5

C.T. 2977, Lot 312,
3rd Mile, Mukim Si Rusa,
Daerah Port Dickson, Negeri Sembilan.

Avillion Resort
Port Dickson Car Parks

6

H.S.(D) 24667 PT 215,
5th Mile, Mukim Pekan, Teluk Kemang,
Daerah Port Dickson, Negeri Sembilan.

7

10

Net Built-up
Area (sq.ft)

(Note 1)

Date of Purchase
Note 1 :

C.T.5972 Lot 1273, 3rd Mile, Mukim Si Rusa, Daerah Port Dickson, Negeri Sembilan.
H.S.(D) 12303, 3rd Mile, Mukim Si Rusa, Daerah Port Dickson, Negeri Sembilan.
H.S.(D) 15353, 3rd Mile, Mukim Si Rusa, Daerah Port Dickson, Negeri Sembilan.
H.S.(D) 18191, 3rd Mile, Mukim Si Rusa, Daerah Port Dickson, Negeri Sembilan.
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Authorised Share Capital
Issued & Paid-up Capital
Class of Shares		
Voting Rights
	On show of hands
	On a poll		

:
RM500,000,000
:
RM171,710,350
:	Ordinary Shares of RM0.20 each
:
:

1 vote
1 vote for each share held

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS
ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
Range of Shareholdings
Less than 100
100 to 1,000
1,001 to 10,000
10,001 to 100,000
100,001 to less than 5% of issued shares
5% and above of issued shares

Number of Shareholders
387
385
911
985
140
5
2,813

REGISTER OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Excluding Bare Trustees)
Number of Shares
			
Direct
Percentage of Issued Capital
1.
Reliance Holdings Sdn Bhd
62,025,925
7.22
2.
Dato’ Gan Eng Kwong
6,632,750
0.77
3.
Datin Irene Tan
4.
Ahmad Nazim Bin Abd. Rahman
78,501,350
9.14
5.
Dato’ Mukhriz Mahathir
6,250,000
0.73
6.
Thong Swe Cheong
341,625
0.04
DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS		
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Dato’ Gan Eng Kwong
Datin Irene Tan
Dato’ Abdul Rahim Bin Osman
Lim Guan Chin
Tan Sin Chong

Number of Shares
Direct
Percentage of Issued Capital
1,394,150
0.16
147,800
0.02
215,400
0.03

Number of Shares
9,596
129,745
5,222,754
28,101,165
469,150,445
355,938,045
858,551,750

Percentage of Issued Capital
0.00
0.02
0.61
3.27
54.64
41.46
100.00

Number of Shares
Indirect
322,909,020
(Note (a))
459.924,595
(Note (b))
499,057,345
(Note (c))
17,625,600
(Note (d))
38,917,485
(Note (e))
43,877,575
(Note (f))

Percentage of Issued Capital
37.61
53.57
54.34
2.05
5.26
5.11

Number of Shares
Indirect
497,663,195
(Note (b))
499,057,345
(Note (c))
903,750
(Note (g))
9,284,300
(Note (d))

Percentage of Issued Capital
57.96
58.13
0.11
1.08

Notes:(a)
(b)
(c)

Reliance Holdings Sdn Bhd is deemed to have an indirect interest held through nominees.
Deemed interested by virtue of Section 6A(4) of the Companies’ Act 1965 held through Reliance Holdings Sdn Bhd and nominees.
Deemed interested by virtue of Section 122(A) of the Companies’ Act 1965 and by virtue of Section 6A(4) of the Companies’ Act 1965 held
through Reliance Holdings Sdn Bhd and nominees.
(d)
Deemed interested by virtue of his indirect interest held through nominees.
(e)
Deemed interested by virtue of Section 6A(4) of the Companies’ Act 1965 held through Prestige Avenue (M) Sdn Bhd and M-Ocean Holdings Sdn Bhd.
(f)
Deemed interested by virtue of his indirect interest held through nominees and Section 122(A) of the Companies’ Act 1965.
(g)
Deemed interested by virtue of Section 122(A) of the Companies’ Act 1965.
No of Shares
Percentage of Issued Capital
THIRTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS
1.
AMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd - Pledged securities account - AmBank (M) Berhad for Reliance Holdings Sdn Bhd
91,289,145
10.63
2.
Mayban Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd - Pledged securities account for Reliance Holdings Sdn Bhd
75,688,125
8.82
67,433,500
7.85
3.
HLB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd - Pledged securities account for Reliance Holdings Sdn Bhd
4.
Reliance Holdings Sdn Bhd
62,025,925
7.22
5.
Ahmad Nazim Bin Abd Rahman
59,501,350
6.93
6.
CIMB Group Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd - Pledged securities account for Reliance Holdings Sdn Bhd
35,150,000
4.09
7.
Prestige Avenue (M) Sdn Bhd
29,121,670
3.39
8.
Azizul Nizam Bin Bidin
28,003,250
3.26
9.
M.I.T. Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd - Pledged securities account for Dato’ Gan Eng Kwong
20,283,500
2.36
10.
Ahmad Nazim Bin Abd Rahman
19,000,000
2.21
11.
CIMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd - CIMB Bank for Reliance Holdings Sdn Bhd
16,800,000
1.96
12.
Lee Pok Mun
16,085,200
1.87
13.
AMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd - Pledged securities account - AmBank (M) Berhad For Reliance Holdings Sdn Bhd
14,748,250
1.72
14.
CIMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd - CIMB Bank for Dato’ Gan Eng Kwong
12,940,000
1.51
15.
M.I.T. Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd - Pledged securities account for Thong Swe Cheong
12,838,000
1.50
16.
CIMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd - CIMB Bank for Thong Swe Cheong
12,750,000
1.49
17.
TASEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd - Pledged securities account for Ahmad Nazim Bin Abd Rahman
12,000,000
1.40
18.
AmBank (M) Berhad - Pledged securities account for Thong Swe Cheong
11,856,250
1.38
19.
AMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd - Pledged securities account - AmBank (M) Berhad for Chong Yen Yin
11,105,000
1.29
20.
ABB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd - Pledged securities account for Reliance Holdings Sdn Bhd
11,000,000
1.28
21.
EB Nominees (Tempatan) Sendirian Berhad - Pledged securities account for Reliance Holdings Sdn Bhd
10,800,000
1.26
22.
Azizul Nizam Bin Bidin
10,000,000
1.16
23.
M-Ocean Holdings Sdn Bhd
9,795,815
1.14
24.
EB Nominees (Tempatan) Sendirian Berhad - Pledged securities account for Dato’ Gan Eng Kwong
9,500,000
1.11
25.
RHB Capital Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd - Pledged securities account for Dato’ Gan Eng Kwong
9,460,000
1.10
26.
Chan Chong Cheat @ Chan Chong Kiat
8,651,000
1.01
27.
Chan Choy Har
8,626,100
1.00
28.
RHB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd - Pledged securities account for Chan Chong Cheat @ Chan Chong Kiat
8,358,500
0.97
29.
Alliancegroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd - Pledged securities account for Dato’ Gan Eng Kwong
8,166,400
0.95
30.
Dato’ Gan Eng Kwong
6,632,750
0.77
709,609,730
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Proxy Form

No. of Ordinary Shares Held

19th Annual General Meeting

RELIANCE PACIFIC BERHAD 244521 A

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

I/We
Name in Block Letters

of
Full Address

being (a) member (s) of RELIANCE PACIFIC BERHAD, HEREBY APPOINT
Mr/Mrs/Mdm/Miss
of
or failing him/her, the Chairman of the Meeting as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the 19th Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held at the Langkawi Room, Bukit Jalil Golf & Country Resort, Jalan 3/155B, Bukit Jalil, 57000
Kuala Lumpur on Friday, 23 September 2011 at 10.30 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof, in the manner indicated below:
RESOLUTION NO.

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

FOR

1

Re-appointment of Lim Guan Chin retiring under Section 129(6) of the Companies’ Act, 1965.

2

Re-election of Tan Sin Chong retiring pursuant to article 98 of the Company’s Articles of
Association.

3

Re-election of Dato’ Samsudin Bin Abu Hassan retiring pursuant to article 98 of the Company’s
Articles of Association.

4

Approval of Directors’ fees for the financial year ended 31 March 2011.

5

Re-appointment of Messrs AljeffriDean as the Company’s Auditors and to authorise the Directors
to fix their remuneration.

6

Approval of allotment and issue of shares pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies’ Act, 1965.

7

Proposed renewal of for Share Buy-Back Authority.

8
9

AGAINST

Proposed Shareholder’ Ratification and Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate for Recurrent Related
Party Transactions of a revenue or trading nature.
Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate on Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a
revenue or trading nature.

Please indicate with an “X” in the spaces provided how you wish your vote to be cast. In the absence of specific instructions, your Proxy will vote
or abstain from voting as he/she thinks fit.
Signature :
Dated this

day of

2011

NOTES:
1) Every member of the Company is entitled to appoint a proxy or in the case of a corporation, to appoint a representative to attend and vote in his
stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.
2) The Proxy Form must be signed by the appointer or by his attorney duly authorised in writing or if the appointer is a corporation, either under seal or
under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.
3) If no name is inserted in the space for the name of your proxy, the Chairman of the Meeting will act as your proxy.
4) The Proxy Form must be deposited at the office of the Registered Office of the Company at Block A Unit A-5-3 Megan Avenue II, 12 Jalan Yap Kwan
Seng, 50450 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia, not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time set for holding the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.
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